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November 26, 2002

President and Members
East Baton Rouge Parish School Board

Dear Board Members:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the East Baton Rouge Parish School Board for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2002, 1s presented herewith. This financtal report represents a comprehensive portrait of the
School Board’s financial condition. It 1s structured in such a manner as to make it a very useful management
instrument as well as an informative public document.

The Comprehensive Annual Fiancial Report, along with internal audit activities and other budgetary reports,
combine to provide for an effective internal fiscal management control system. This combination of accounting
and fiancial reporting serves the purpose of satisfying our responsibility to provide the public with complete and
accurate financial data.

The fiscal year 2001 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report received the Certificate of Achicvement for
Excellence in Financial Reporting from the Government Finance Officers Association and the Certificate of
Excellence in Financial Reporting from the Association of School Business Officials. This was the sixteenth
consecutive year that the School Board received both of these prestigious awards.

The staff of the Operations and Budget Management, Finance, and Graphic Arts Departments is to be commended
for the attainment of such high standards for their financial reporting and their efforts in the preparation of this
report on a timely basis. In addition, Postlethwaite & Netterville, our independent auditors, are to be commended
for the professional, thorough, and timely manner in which the audit was conducted.

4

Respectfully submitted,

Clayfon M. Wilcox
Supenntendent
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November 26, 2002

President and Members
East Baton Rouge Parish School Board

Residents of East Baton Rouge Panish

We are pleased to submit to you the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the East Baton Rouge
Parish School Board (School Board), for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002. This report provides full disclosure of
the financial operations of the School Board for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002. This CAFR, which includes an
opinion from the Independent Auditors that performed the School Board’s audit, conforms to Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP) as applicable to governmental entities. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the
data and the completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the School Board and
management of the School Board. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the enclosed data are accurate in all
material respects and are reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial position and results of
operations of various funds and account groups of the School Board. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader
to gain an understanding of the School Board’s financial activities have been included.

A New Reporting Model

The School Board and management adopted the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements — and Management's Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local
Governments for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2001. Statement 34 was approved by GASB on June 30, 1999 and
represents the most significant change in the history of governmental accounting. The release of this standard created
a new rcporting mode! that affects every public school organization that issues financial statements in conformity
with GAAP. While the School Board was not required to issue financial statements in accordance with GASB
Statement No. 34 until the year ended Junc 30, 2002, management decided that early implementation allowed for
better fine tuning and accumulation of the necessary database well tn advance of the required date.

The new reporting model is designed to make the annual financial report easier for the public to understand and
improve operational accountability with the introduction of district-wide financial statements compared to the
previous reporting model which was based on fund and fund types. GASB No. 34 creates new basic financial
statements for reporting on the School Board’s financial activities as follows:

Government—wide financial statements consist of a statement of net assets and a statement of activities.
These statements are prepared on an accrual basis of accounting for all activities of the district, which is
similar to the basis of accounting and financial reporting followed by the private sector. The government-
wide statements distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the School Board.

Fund financial statements present information for individual major governmental and enterprise funds
rather than by fund type. Non-major funds are presented 1n total in one column.

Notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a user’s understanding of
the basic financial statcments. Notes contain information that is not a part of the financial statements;
however, notes are an integral part of the statements.



Required Supplementary Information (RSI) consists of statcments that present compansons of actual
information to the legally adopted budget. Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) 1s also a part
of the RSI and is intended to provide an objective, easy to understand narrative overview and analysis of the
basic financial statements. It explains the financial position and results of operations of the School Board
for the past fiscal year.

Copies of this CAFR will be made available to the Chamber of Commerce, major taxpayers, the public
library, and other interested parties.

CAFR Sections

The CAFR 1s presented in three sections: the Introductory Section, the Financial Section and the Statistical Section.
The Introductory Section includes the table of contents, recognition of School Board members, a list of
admimistrative officials, the Superintendent’s transmittal letter, this transmittal letter, reproductions of the prior
year’s certificates of excellence in financial reporting, and the School Board’s organizational charts. The Financial
Section includes the MD&A, the Basic Financial Statements including notes to the financial statements, required
supplemental information, the combining and individual fund financial statements that provide detailed information
to the Basic Financial Statements, and the Independent Auditors’ Report on the basic financial statements. The
Statistical Section includes selected comparative financial, non-financial, demographic and economic information of
the School Board.

The School Board is also required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the provisions of Single
Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Information related to this single audit, including the
schedule of federal financial assistance, and independent auditors’ reports on the internal control structure and
compliance with applicable laws and regulations is included in a separate single audit report and is available at the
School Board office for inspection.

Reporting Entity

This report includes all funds and account groups of the School Board. The School Board is a political subdivision
of the State of Louisiana created under the Constitution of Louisiana. It has the power to sue and be sued and o
make rules and regulations for its own government consistent with the laws of the State of Louisiana and the
regulations of the State Board of Elementary and Secondary Education (BESE). It is the responsibility of the School
Board to make public education available to the residents of East Baton Rouge Parish.

The elected Board ts chosen from twelve single-member districts with each member serving a concurrent four-year
term. The School Board is authorized to formulate policy, to establish public schools as it deems necessary, to
provide adequate school facilities for the children of East Baton Rouge Parish, to determine the number of teachers
to be employed and to determine a Iocal supplement to their salaries. Additionally, the School Board selects the
Superintendent of Schools to serve as the system’s chief executive officer.

The School Board operates the second largest school district in the State, The district is near the fop fifty nationally
in terms of student enrollment. The School Board provides a full range of public education services at all grade
levels ranging from pre-kindergarten through grade twelve to approximately 52,300 students. Total enroliment
includes students participating in pre-kindergarten programs, regular and enriched academic education, alternative
education, special education for the handicapped to age twenty-two, vocational education and three Charter Schools
(two elementary and one middle). In additton, the School Board serves approximately 5,600 adult education students
annually and employs approximately 7,300 persons. Services provided to students include instructional staff,
instractional materials, instructional facilities, administrative support, business services, food services, system
operations, facility maintenance, and bus transportation.
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ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

The School Board is located in Baton Rouge, Lowsiana, in the southeastern section of the State, along the
Mississippi River, In addition to being the second largest city in the State, Baton Rouge is also the capital of
Louisiana and the principal home of two major state universities; Southern University (SU) and Louisiana State
University (LSU). The Baton Rouge Community College (BRCC), a two-year institution of higher education, opened
in the Fall of 1998 and is jointly under the control, supervision, and management of the Board of Supervisors of
Southern Umiversity and Louisiana State University.

Baton Rouge 1s the home of one of the largest oil refining and petrochemical centers in the nation and 1s the hub of
the industrial region that stretches eighty miles to New Orlecans. Located 230 river miles (434 kilometers) above the
mouth of the Mississippi River, with a 45-foot channel, Baton Rouge 1s the furthest inland deepwater port on the
Gulf of Mexico via the Mississippi River. The expanding Port of Greater Baton Rouge ranks ninth among the major
ports of the nation and third in Louisiana. The Greater Baton Rouge area 1s designated as a U.S. Customs Port of
Entry and with a position of 230 river miles from the Gulf. The Port of Greater Baton Rouge is a strategic gateway
for the handling of international and domestic commerce.

Baton Rouge is the home for several high-technology research facilitics such as Louisiana State University’s
C. B. Pennington Biomedical Research Center and its Center for Advanced Microstructure and Devices. Facilities
such as these will continue to boost the local economy. Many of the processes and applications assoctated with these
facilities are charting new directions in nutrition and preventative medicine, along with the enhancement of industrial
competitiveness through increased technoiogical breakthroughs in X-ray beams.

With the coming of the new century, the Baton Rouge community recognizes that it must position itself to capitalize
upon the growing tourism and convention industry. In order to do this effectively and to allow Baton Rouge the
opportunity to compete as a second-tier convention city, a major Capital Improvement Program is underway to
expand the Centroplex convention facility from its present 60,000 square feet to 160,000 square feet. This facility
expanston will support the numerous private and public development projects in the adjacent areas and Louisiana’s
capital city will be poised to attract conventions of a size that it presently cannot accommodate.

The Greater Baton Rouge Airport District has completed construction on a public parking garage. Phase 11 is also
underway with major renovations to the airport terminal complex to better accommodate current and future traffic
needs and enable the Airport to adjust to changing airline service patterns. The Airport District is also currently
involved in a noise reduction and abatement program, which 1s one of the most aggressive of such programs in the
United States, whereby the program creates a non-restdential noise buffer zonc around the Airport. The program
demonstrates the Airport’s willingness to be a good neighbor to the community.

The recently opened Advanced Traffic Management Facility includes technologies that will dramatically decrease
the time necessary to detect incidents and improve the response time for all emergency agencies. The facility is
occupled on a 24-hour basis by various agencies such as local law enforcement, emergency medical services,
emergency 911 communications, fire communications and traffic engineering. The use of closed circuit television
and speed sensors on the interstate highway system will enhance traffic control.

Following many years of economic expansion in the Baton Rouge economy, driven by retail sales and employment
increases, retail sales began to dip. This is compared to annual retail sales increases in excess of 6% for a ten-year
period prior to 2000. Sales tax collections represent a major component of revenue and fiscal year ended 2002
reflected a positive net change of approximately 1.9%, the first i over two years. The local economy added
approximately 2,200 nonagricultural jobs as compared to a year ago. The unemployment rate for June 2002 was
6.5% compared to 5.8% for June 2001.

Several years ago, the Louisiana Legislature approved a revision to the State Minimum Foundation Program (MFP)
for elementary and secondary education that has and will continue to greatly impact the School Board. This MFP
formula establishes a standard of local support for each school system based on the State average local support
relative to the system’s capacity to raise local funds. The formula provides that no school system will receive less
State funds than the MFP formula provided to them in 1991-92 unless there 1s a decline 1n student enrollment.

X1



Student enrollment has continued to decline for the last several years resulting in a decrease of approximately
9,700 students since 1994, This decline in student enrollment has resulted in State funding to the School Board being
reduced by millions of dollars. However, until this fiscal year, this formula provided no additional revenues to the
School Board even n a year of student enrollment growth. A “hold-harmless” clause was in the formula to provide
assurance that the School Board would not lose an estimated $30.6 million. The Legislature had designated limited
increases in State funding in recent years to approximately eleven districts with a “hold harmless” clause. The
increases to those districts were designated for the purpose of increasing teacher compensation in conjunction with a
move by the Legislature and the Governor to improve teacher compensation statewide.

The “hold harmless” designation for the past ten ycars was modified by the Legislature for the 2001-2002 fiscal year
and replaced with a designation of “over funded”. The “hold harmless” distinction in Level 1 (local wealth) and
Level 2 (local effort) of the MFP formula was replaced by an “over funded” designation in Level 3 of the formula.
As a result, the School Board has a not to exceed amount of approximately $30.2 million or $567 per student, with
equal partictpation in Levels 1 and 2.

The General Fund Budget has sustained substantial cuts to programs and extensive employee reductions as a result
of declining student enrollment, state funding, and flat sales tax collections in recent years. Expenditures must
continue to be closely monitored as expenditure reductions will be necessary in the upcoming fiscal year.

The voters approved a “pay as you go” Tax Plan to improve facilities/technology, discipline and compensation in the
school district on November 3, 1998, This plan will be funded by the proceeds from a one-cent sales tax levied over
a five-year period for a total of approximately $287.1 million. Food, medicine and drugs, utilities, gasoline,
newspapers, and prescribed medical supplies would be exempt from this tax. The voters approved the plan,
comprised of three components with each requiring a separate vote, with all three propositions receiving
approximately 60% of voter support of the tax.

s Proposition 1 (0.51-cent sales tax effective July I, 1999) provides funding for school repairs and
renovations, new classroom construction, and four new schools (one elementary, one middle and two high).
Also, included in this proposition are improvements to technology to install computers in all schools and in

all classrooms, with a system-wide network that will allow Intermnet access and hands-on computer
expertences for all students.

» Proposition 2 (0.08-cent sales tax, effective July 1, 1999) provides funding to establish elementary, middle,
and high school discipline centers and or classrooms. A second alternative school for over-age students in

grades five through eight and an expanded and enhanced truancy program will also be funded by this
proposttion.

s Proposition 3 (0.41-cent sales tax effective Apnl 1, 1999) provides funding to improve compensation for all
employees effective July 1, 1999 with an average teacher raise of approximately $3,700 per year. This
compensation increase will altow the school system to be more competitive in recruiting and retaining the
most qualified teachers throughout the area.

Implementation of all programs, renovations, construction, and increased compensation became effective July 1,
1999 with the exception of the additional classrooms and staff, which received federal court approval under the
current Consent Decree with collections effective July 1, 2000. An Oversight Committee was also established by the
School Board as required in the Tax Plan to review management’s semi-annual reports and provide any repoits or
comments it deems necessary regarding this plan. The School Board and the Tax Plan Advisory Committee are
beginning to discuss the continuance of this tax that will be up for renewal in May of 2003. Community meetings are

currently betng held to seek public support and input for the continuation of the one-cent sales tax for an additional
five years.
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MAJOR INITIATIVES

Current_Year - During the year, the School Board continued its efforts to improve student performance and
community support through various programs.

New School Opening

May 23, 2002 was a joyous day for the School Board as well as the community of Northeast Elementary. Hundreds
of guests crammed the gymnasium of the new Northeast Elementary to witness the ribbon cutting and grand opening
of the first new school to be built in this district in 25 years. This is one of the four new schools approved by the
voters to be built from the proceeds of the one-cent sales tax.

Distinguished Guests Visit EBR Schools to Promote Teach for America

In October, fourth grade students at Eden Park Elementary were thrilled to meet First Lady Laura Bush. The First
Lady surprised them with a visit for a book reading while on a nationwide trip to promote Teach for America.
Ms. Bush, a former teacher and librarian, also talked to the students about recent national events and gave each of
the students a packet of pictures of the Prestdent, White House, and other relevant national symbols. In another
promotion for Teach for America, U.S. Senator John Breaux surprised second and third grade students at Delmont
Elementary. The program 1s in its second year in the district and has had a great success for schools in Baton Rouge
through the program’s local offshoot, Teach Baton Rouge. Teach for America recruits degreed professionals in their
fields to meet the challenge of teaching 1n urban or rural schools.

55 EBR Schools Receive 3680.000 in Awards

As part of the State’s Academic Accountability Program, fifty-five schools received monetary rewards. Schools that
received growth labels of “Recognized Academic Growth”(met or exceeded its growth target, but less than 5 points)
or Exemplary Academic Growth” (exceeded 1its growth target more than 5 points) were awarded more than
$680,000. These awards ranged from $30,172 to $2,674 and can be used at the discretion of the school for any
allowable expenditure other than salanes, bonuses, or construction.

Test Scores

This year the system saw a decline on the Towa Tests scores at grades 3, 5, 7, and 9, and there was an increase in
grade 6. The district continues to see improvements 1n specific areas of the LEAP 21 cnitenon-referenced tests. Both
fourth and eighth grades reported increased passing rates on the English/language arts portion of the test. In
mathematics, the fourth grade passing rate remained the same and the eighth grade mathematics passing rate showed
a shight increase. The Amencan College Test (ACT) average score for the district remained the same at 19.5. The
Schoot systemn had 13 National Merit Semifinalists, 10 National Achievement Semifinalists, and 1 National Hispanic

Scholar.

Educational Programs

Educational choice through magnet programs has resulted in approximately 40 magnet, gifted, and talented programs
being developed and implemented throughout the district. Magnet programs create exciting learning experiences and
promote student achievement. They attract students based on their learning needs, skills and special interests.
Enhanced instructional and magnet programs such as Montessori, Dyslexia, Visual and Performing Arts,
Architectural Design, Medicine, Extended Day, Pre-Kindergarten, Medical/Health, Engineering, Computer Science
and Technology, Communication, Math/Science, Foreign Language & International Studies, and Environmental
Science are just a few of the instructional programs being offered at various levels throughout the school system. The
School Board is privileged to be the first public school system in the State, and one of the few in the nation, to offer

many of these programs.
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The Junior Reserve Officer Training Corp (JROTC) was started in this Parish m 1969 and is currently offered in nine
of fifteen high schools, with each recently being awarded the “Honor Unit or Honor Unit with Distinction” for
achieving exceptionally high standard of training and discipline. JROTC is designed to teach citizenship and
leadership, while instilling self-esteem, teamwork, and self-discipline in high school students. The focus of JROTC
1s reflected 1n i1ts nmssion statement, “To Motivate Young People to be Better Citizens”. JROTC promotes and
encourages service to the community, promotes high school completion, and provides incentives to live drug free.
The driving philosophy and vision behind this program is to produce successful students and productive adults.
Since participation in this program makes cadets fully aware of the opportunities and benefits derived from their
American heritage, the JROTC program makes substantial contributions to the cormamunity and ultimately to the
nation’s future.

The School Board’s enrollment in Career and Technical Education (formerly vocational education) includes
approximately 12,300 high school students and 4,600 middle school students. A vanety of innovative programs
prepare students for a productive citizenship and life-long leaming. The School-to-Work program is designed to
assist all young people in making a successful transition from school to the workplace. Some funding for career and
technical programs is obtatned through the Carl Perkins Il Applied Technology Act. The Basic Grant and Tech Prep
initiatives resulted in funding of approximately $1.0 million for fiscal year 2001-2002. The goals of this department
are accomplished by providing students with assistance in career development activities, development of five year
career plans, purposeful course selection that develops academic and technical skills, development of employability
skills, and providing opportunities for post secondary education and/or immediate entry into the workforce.

The School Board continues to expand opportunities of pre-school programs. Pre-K offers transportation to a
number of sites for six hours of instruction daily along with before and after school care. Our quality pre-school

environments provide small pupil-teacher ratios, certified teachers and a curriculum based on the National
Association for the Education of Young Children standards of developmentally appropriate practices.

A range of services is offered based on the mentally and/or physically disabled child. Special Education students can
be placed in the following: the regular classroom with extra support available, the resource classroom, or the self-
contained classroom. Several Alternative Schools and programs are also offered to help meet the needs of the non-
traditional learner such as the following: The Academy for Diverse Learners, Staring Education Center for over-aged
middle school students, White Hills Preparatory Academy for over-aged middle school students, Northdale Academy
for high school drop out prevention, Valley Park Alternative Center and Juvenile Continuing Education Program for
middle and high school students expelled from the traditional school, and Adult Education centers across the parish.

In October 2001, a first grade teacher at Cedarcrest-Southmoor Elementary received the Miltken Family Foundation
National Educator Award. Criteria for the selection of outstanding education professionals as Milken educators
include exceptional educational talent, outstanding accomplishment and potential for professional leadership, and an
engaging and inspiring presence, which motivates students, colleagues, and the community. During a surprise
assembly at Cedarcrest-Southmoor, representatives of the Milken Family Foundation, the State Superintendent, and
the East Baton Rouge Pansh School System Superintendent presented this teacher with a check for $25,000. Along

with many other honors, this individual was also honored at the Milken National Education Conference in Los
Angeles, Califormia 1n June 2002.

The staff at Broadmoor Middle Magnet wrote a competitive Academic Learning Center grant, which competed with
other school districts in the State and received a $25,000 grant. This grant is being funded to provide extended
instructional time to address the academic reading and mathematic needs of at risk students at Broadmoor Middle. In
addition, Broadmoor Middle has received two other grants. The second grant is entitled “Green Thumb at a Higher
Level”. This is year two also for this grant in the amount of $8,000 for the school’s courtyard beautification as well
as incorporating science and art with students learning about plant life and the beauty of the arts. The third grant was
from Entergy for “Hands-On Minds-On Science” and will be used to purchase hands on science activities in the
amount of $500.
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High Schools in the East Baton Rouge Parish School System are providing our young people with curriculum
opportunities: 1) to pursue college degrees at the nation’s finest colleges and universities; 2) to pursue college
degrees after attending community colleges; 3) fto pursue associate degrees at Technical colleges; 4) to pursue
employment; and 5) to pursue opportunities in different branches of the United States Military. During the 2001-
2002 school year, many East Baton Rouge Parish School System high school students earned credit toward college
degrees while earning Carnegie Units toward a high school diploma at the same time. Our school system works with
other educational institutions in an effort to provide our students with a seamless array of services.

Consent Decree

On August 1, 1996, the U.S. District Judge approved a court agreement (Consent Decree), negotiated by the School
Board, the U.S. Justice Department and the local branch of the NAACP.

The full implementation of this plan requires the appropriation of not less than $3.0 million during each of the first
three years and a substantial increase thereafter for the remaining life of the Consent Decree for the enhancement of
the racially identifiable black schools. The annual $3.0 million appropriation shall be allocated for the first three
years as follows:

®»  Appropriate not less than $600,000 annually for the purpose of effecting necessary enhancements to ractally
identifiable black schools.

*  Appropnate not less than $1,500,000 annually to reduce the pupil teacher ratio at racially 1dentifiable black
schools for the purpose of supplementing the faculty.

= Appropriate $900,000 annually for the achievement of educational equity for racially identifiable black
schools.

Additional appropriations of approximately 3$5.0 million were made to support magnet programs, facility
remediation, and enhance instructional programs. The appropriation for Consent Decree spending in 2001-2002 was
approximately $12.0 million. It is the desire of the School Board to seek Unitary Status and ultimately bring an end
to this case.

LSU Partnership Program

Through the LSU Partnership Program, Highland Elementary and McKinley Middle Magnet will become special
“professional development™ schools for LSU student teachers enrolled in the umiversity’s Teacher Education
Program. East Baton Rouge Parish School System teachers serve as mentors for the LSU student teachers and
commit to ongoing professional development. An LSU faculty member will work on a full-time basis at each of the
two schools helping to coordinate the program.

The McKinley Middle Magnet partnership with LSU that began a year ago has entered its second year and continues
to grow. Ten student interns from the Holmes Program in the Department of Education are placed at McKinley
Middle with mentor teachers. These future teachers assist in classrooms by preparing, planning, and teaching lessons
of their own, working individually and in small groups with students, and facilitating creative high order thinking
projects. Also, there are two undergraduate courses for education majors offered on McKinley Middle’s campus as
well as one graduate level course for McKinley Middle teachers, Partnership activities have alse continued tor our
students and teachers on the LSU campus as well. The partnership has provided enrichment to the school and its
students as well as for future teachers who participate 1n the program.
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Tax Plan Progress

With the November 1998 approval of the one-cent sales tax approved by the voters, several major projects continue
with year three (2001-2002 fiscal year) of the Tax Plan as follows:

" Actual repairs and renovations continued in 2001-2002, including fire code violations, roofs, heating and air
conditioning systems, plumbing and clectrical upgrades, and handicapped accessible restrooms. The
summer construction program was a success with a majority of renovation projects being completed prior to
the return of students to the classroom. Roofing, classroom additions and vartous renovation projects will
continue throughout the school year.

» Twelve of twenty-five classroom addition projects have been completed providing an additional 60,000
square feet of new facility space to twelve existing campuses. New classroom additions at Belfair, Bernard
Terrace, Buchanan, Brookstown, Brownfields, Delmont, Glen Oaks Park, Greenville, LaBelle Aire,
Melrose, North Highlands and Zachary Elementary Schools are complete. The teachers and students are
presently utilizing the spaces. Baton Rouge Center for Visual and Performing Arts, Claiborne, Highland and
Wedgewood Elementary Schools will be substantially complete by December 2002. Design has been
initiated at Howell Park, Lanier and University Terrace Elementary Schools. Construction 1s scheduled to
begin in January 2003,

"  Technology wiring has been completed at 71 schools for the purpose of installing local area networks 1n
classrooms.

= Construction on the new Northeast Elementary School is complete. Administrators moved into the building
this summer with students arriving for the first day of school in August 2002. Design 1s underway for the
abatement and demolition of the old Northeast Elementary School.

»  Construction on the new Woodlawn High School is well underway. Site development is complete and the
building and athletic complex construction is underway. Construction 1s on schedule and school opening 1s
projected for August 2003,

® Construction of the new Northeast Middle and High School s underway. Site clearing work 1s complete.
Building and athletic complex construction is underway. The project 1s on schedule with construction
completion anticipated for May of 2003.

» The programming and design process for the mew Capitol Middle School has been imitiated. The
Programming and Schematic design phases are complete. Design development documents are under review.
The site clearing and grading construction is underway and scheduled for completion this year. Building
construction is scheduled to start later this year with completion of May 2004.

Charter School Demonstration Programs

During the 1995 Louisiana Legislative Session, the Legislature passed Senate Bill 1305 (Act 192 of 1995) which
established a Charter School Demonstration (pilot) program and gives parents, teachers, and citizens an opportunity
to create independent public schools. The School Board received BESE approval to be one of the eight
demonstration districts and began operation of three charter schools in the fall of 1997.

The School Board approved two elementary and one middle charter school. The three charter schools began
operation in the fall of 1997, each with approximately 54 students. Enrollment has more than doubled 1n each school
since they opened. Student enrollment increases have been approved by the Board allowing for enrollment (with
funding) in grades K-5 at the elementary schools of up to 120 students and 130 students for the middle school. The
total General Fund appropriation to the charter schools for the 2001-2002 fiscal year was $2,329,405.
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Facilities Management Parinership Contract

The School Board negotiated a five-year partnership arrangement with Aramark/ServiceMaster to provide Facilities
Management Services. The five-year contract, with an effective date of March 1, 1999, includes facility management
services at all locations, employee training, and additional equipment for the school system. The third evaluation of
services was completed by all locations with most sites submitting a rating of good to excellent in the area of grounds
management. Maintenance performances were rated slightly better than services prior to the Aramark/ServiceMaster
arrangement. The rating in the area of custodial services showed improvement from the prior year;, however, this
remained the lowest rated service department. Therefore, this will remain an area requiring additional attention in
this arrangement for the following year.

For the Future

Substantial expenditure reductions will be required for the 2002-2003 fiscal year as previously mentioned in the
2001-2002 budget and CAFR for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002. These expenditure reductions are necessary
mainly as a result of two (2) straight years of flat sales tax collections, reduced state funding due to a continued
decline in student enrollment, a substantial increase in the General Liability Insurance premiums as a result of the
September 11" attack, and a continued increase in costs to provide health care coverage for a growing member
group due to employee retirements.

Most notable of the need for the expenditure reductions is the adverse financial impact of approximately
$10.7 million associated with the City of Baker and Zachary Community School Systems’ separation from this
district as approved by the voters and Federal Court for the Fall of 2003. While the departure of these systems will
allow the School Board to realize some reductions of expenditures, some spending will remain constant and those
costs cannot be reduced, despite the anticipated ioss of students and reduction in staff. The Board’s expert
consultant has verified and reported, “The School Board will incur a loss of revenue under the projections furnished
by the Louisiana State Department of Education (SDE) and under any of the separation scenanos. This loss of
revenue is not offset by a reduction of expenditures due to the loss of students. The net loss to the School Board is
significant under any of the projections and under any of the separation scenarios.”

Approximately $12.8 million in expenditure reductions are projected for 2002-2003 and $6.4 million in 2003-2004
to establish a fund balance of approximately $5.9 million at the end of the 2003-2004 fiscal year. As mentioned
earlier, State funding is tied to student enrollment and the continued decline in student enrollment results in a
subsequent reduction in State funding.

The School Board approved the 2002-2003 General Fund Budget with a total increase in revenue from the prior year
of $739,526 and a subsequent net reduction in expenditures from the prior year of approximately $3.6 million. While
property taxes are projected to increase by approximately 2.0% from the prior year, sales taxes are projected to
remain basically unchanged. Student enroliment is projected to decline by approximately 1,000 students for the
2002-2003 fiscal year. Approximately 80% of the total General Fund Budget is dedicated to salaries and related
benefits and is structured as such to provide the necessary services to the children of this parish. Subsequently, as the
enrollment continues to decline, a reduction tn the number of positions will also be necessary.

Internal Control

Management of the School Board is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure
designed to ensure that the assets of the government are protected from loss, theft or misuse, and to ensure that
adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles. The internal control structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not

“absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: 1) the costs

of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and 2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires
estimates and judgments by management. The School Board utilizes a fully automated accounting system as well as
an automated system of control for fixed assets and payroll. We believe that the School Board’s internal controls
adequately safeguard assets and provide reasonable, proper recording of financial transactions.
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Single Audit

As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, the School Board 1s responsible for ensuring that an adequate
internal control structure 1s 1 place to ensure comphiance with applicable laws and regulations related to these
programs. This internal control structure is subject to periodic evaluation by management and the internal audit staff
of the School Board.

As a part of the School Board’s single audit described earlier, tests are made to determine the adequacy of the
internal control structure, including that portion related to federal financial assistance programs, and to determine
that the School Board has complied with applicable laws and regutations. The results of the School Board’s Single
Audit, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002, provided no 1nstances of material weaknesses in the 1atemal control
structure or significant violations of applicable laws and regulations,

Budgeting Contrels

The School Board maintains budgetary controls. The objective of this system is to ensure compliance with legal
provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by the School Board’s governing body. Activities
of the General Fund and Special Revenue Funds are included in the annual appropriated budget. The level of
budgetary control (that is, the level at which expenditures cannot exceed the appropriated amount) is estabhished at
the individual fund level for all funds. The School Board also maintains an encumbrance accounting system as one
technique of accomplishing budgetary control. Encumbered amounts in the General Fund are reported as
reservations of fund balance and generally are re-appropriated as part of the next year’s budget.

Capital Projects Funds

Capital Projects Funds are provided by 0.51% of a one-cent sales tax in Proposition 1 for facilities and technology as
approved by the voters in November 1998 as mentioned previously. The effective collection date for this proposition
was July 1, 1999. Total sales tax revenues in Proposition 1 for the year ended June 30, 2002 amounted to
$29,922,142. The collection of this tax is for a five-year period and is for the purpose of funding repairs and
renovations, enhancing technology, and constructing new schools and classrooms.

Debt Administration

The School Board approved an Authorizing Resolution to participate in the Qualified Zone Academy Bond Program
(QZAB) on November 1, 2001 and borrowed a total of $2,250,000 for a term not to exceed fifteen (15) years at 0%
interest. This program is a result of the Taxpayer Rehief Act of 1997, which allows schoot districts to borrow at no
interest cost up to their maximum award for a term not to exceed fiftcen years at 0% interest. This financial tool can
be used by State Education Agencies to encourage the formation of partnerships between public schools and local
busmesses. Under QZAB regulations, a 10% contnibution from private sources 1s required in order to issue a QZAB.
Interest on QZAB 1s paid by the federal government in the form of an annual tax credit to a bank or other eligible
financial institution that holds the QZAB. Eligible schools must be located in an Empowerment Zone or have at least
35% or more of its student population eligible for free or reduced lunch under the National School Lunch Act. The
School Board also approved a $2.6 million capital lease to purchase instructional software and is scheduled to be
paid over a four-year penod.

Cash Management

Cash temporarily idle during the year was invested in interest-bearing accounts with our fiscal agency, in certificates
-of deposits, and in the Louisiana Asset Management Pool (LAMP). The School Board’s Investment Policy is to
minimize credit and market risks while maintaining a competitive yield on its portfolio. Total investment income
from all sources totaled $2,016,482 reflecting a reduction of approximately $1.4 million from the prior year. This
reduction 15 a result of the continued dechine in the interest rate and a reduction in the amount of cash available to
invest in Proposition 1with a very active construction program.

Cash balances run very low duning many of the months from July through December. For the past twelve years, the
School Board has participated 1in an Advance Funding Program of the Louisiana Public Facility Authonty (LPFA) in
an effort to rmnimize this problem.
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In October 2001, the School Board entered into a short-term Advance Funding Agreement with LPFA for
$5,000,000 at an interest rate of 3.26%. That loan was successfully repaid by March 1, 2002. This program has been
very beneficial to this Schoel Board and has provided funds to facilitate the adverse “cash flow” problems brought
on by the cyclical nature of the receipt of ad valorem revenues. The School Board will again participate in the
program for the 2002-2003 fiscal year.

All of the School Board’s primary deposits as of June 30, 2002 were either collateralized by securities held by the
School Board or by its agent in the name of the School Board as required by law. The School Board’s consolidated
bank account holds the cash of all funds. Temporary negative cash balances may occur in vanous funds during the
year pending reimbursements from State and Federal grants, as these grants are awarded on a reimbursement basis.
The General Fund finances these temporary situations 1n the majority of the cases.

Risk Management

The School Board’s administration is charged with the responstbility of supervising the protection of the district’s
assets by implementing various risk management techniques and procedures to reduce, absorb, minimize or transfer
rnisk. A Risk Management staff is in place to manage this process and includes contracted support to assist
management with measures to identify and reduce the system’s exposure to loss. The School Board continues to
carry vanous forms of hability insurance including, but not limited to, excess workers’ compensation coverage,
property and casualty, errors and omissions, auto liability and general liability. The School Board adopted a self-
insurance program for general habihity, property and fleet vehicle insurance. Annual appropriations continue to be
approved by the School Board to fund this program.

The medical insurance program includes health, hife and other benefits for all full-time employecs. With the
continued rising costs of providing health care coverage, this fund has resulted in a deficit in the Retained Earnings.
The School Board approved plan modifications effective September 2002 and premium increases effective January
1, 2003 in an effort to reduce the Retained Earnings deficit in this program. Additional premium increases and plan
modifications will be developed and recommended during the next fiscal year.

OTHER INFORMATION

Independent Audit

State statutes require an annual audit by independent certified public accountants. The public accounting firm of
Postlethwaite & Netterville was selected by the School Board several years ago to perform its’ annual financial audit.
In addition {o meeting the requirements set forth in State statutes, this audit was designed to comply with
requirements of the Federal Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and related OMB Circular A-133. The auditors’
reports on the basic financial statements are included in the financial section of this report. The auditors’ reports
related specifically to the single audit, internal control, and compliance with laws and regulations are included in a
separate report and are available for review at the School Board.

AWARDS

(overnment Finance Officers Association

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) of the Umited States and Canada awarded a Certificate of
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the School Board for its Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2001. This was the sixteenth consecutive year that the Schoo! Board has
received this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the School Board published an
casily readable and efficiently orgamized Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. This report satisfied both
generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a perniod of one year only. Management believes that the 2001-2002
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement program’s requirements
and will submuit it to the GFOA. for review in determining eligibility for another certificate.
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Association of School Business OQfficials

The School Board has received the Association of School Business Officials (ASBO) Certificate of Excellence in
Financial Reporting for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2001. This was the sixteenth consecuttve year that the School
Board has received this prestigious award. This award certifies that the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2001, substantially conforms to the principles and standards of financial reporting as
recommended and adopted by the Association of School Business Officials International. The award 1s granted only
after an intensive technical review of financial reports by an expert panel of certified public accountants and
practicing school business officials has been made. The Certificate of Excellence is the highest form of recognition
in school financial reporting issued by the Association of School Business Officials International.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. Management believes that the Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report, for the fiscal vear ended June 30, 2002, which will be submitted to ASBQ for review, also
conforms to their principles and standards.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

It is our desire that this report contain the necessary information and data that will provide a better understanding of
the operations of the School Board. It is further hoped that this report has been designed in such a manner as to be
used as an administrative tool and general source of information to enhance our accountability to the public.

The preparation of this report in a timely manner could not have been achieved without a dedicated and highly
qualified staff. I would like to take this opportunity to express my sincere appreciation to the entire Budget
Management and Finance Department staff, whose extraordinary efforts and dedication contributed significantly in
the timely preparation of this report. The professional, thorough, and timely manner in which our independent
auditors, Postlethwaite & Netterville, conducted the audit is also appreciated. Our Graphic Arts Department 1s to be
commended on their creative input in the design and timely reproduction of this document.

We would like to thank the Superintendent and members of the School Board for their interest and support in
planning and conducting the financial operations of the East Baton Rouge Parish School System 1n a responsible and
progressive manner.

Sincerely,

Deputy Superintendent for
Operations and Budget Management
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This Certificate of Excellence in Financial Reporting 1s presented to

EAST BATON ROUGE PARISH SCHOOL SYSTEM

For its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001

Upon recommendation of the Association’s Panel of Review which has judged that the Report
substantially conforms to princinles and standards of ASBQ's Certificate of Excellence Pragram
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Postlethwaite & Netterville

A Protessional Accounting Corporation
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

The East Baton Rouge Parish School Board

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the East Baton Rouge Parish School Board (School Board) as of and for the year ended June 30,
2002, which collectively comprise the School Board's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial

statements are the responsibility of the School Board's management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
apphcable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also inclndes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of
the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the East Baton Rouge Parish School
Board as of June 30, 2002 and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year
then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

The management's discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages xxvii through xxxviii and pages 36
through 40 are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management
regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the
information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opmions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the East Baton
Rouge Parish School Board's basic financial statements. The accompanying supplementary information consisting of the
introductory section, combining and individual non-major fund financial statements, and statistical tables are presented for purposes
of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The combining and individual non-major fund
financial statements have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our
opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory
section and statistical tables have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements
and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.
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In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 8, 2002 on our consideration of
the East Baton Rouge Parish School Board's intemal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain

provistons of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants. That report is an integral pari of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audits.

Prsthihialt= ¥ Y illorsth

Baton Rouge, Louisiana
November 8, 2002
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East Baton Rouge Parish School System
Baton Rouge, Louisiana

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2002

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) of the East Baton Rouge Pansh School Board’s
(School Board) financial performance provides an overall review and an objective, easily readable analysis of the
School Board’s financial activities for the fiscal year-ended June 30, 2002. The intent of the MD&A 1s to look at the
School Board’s overall financial performance as a whole and to assist readers 1n assessing the financial position as a
result of the year’s operations. Therefore, readers should read the MD&A in conjunction with the Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report’s (CAFR) Letter of Transmittal (Page 1x) of the Introductory Section, the School Board’s
Financial Statements (Financial Section Page 1), and the Notes to the Financial Statements.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

¢ Total assets of the School Board exceeded total liabilities at June 30, 2002 by $164.4 mullion (net assets).
The unrestricted portion of net assets was $5.1 million and may be used to meet the government’s ongoing
obligations and operational needs.

» Total net assets increased by $44.1 million for the year. Net assets invested 1n capital assets, net of related
debt, increased by 3$47.2 million with a corresponding reduction in net assets restricted for capital
improvements of $13.8 milhhon. This 1s a resuit of the many school renovation projects and school
construction in progress at three sites that are funded by Proposition 1 of the Tax Plan. Net assets for
supplemental compensation also increased by $3.3 million from the prior year as sales tax collections
increased, employees decreased, a reduced Teachers’ Retirement System employer contribution rate, and
the continued suspension of the School Employee’s Retirement System employer contribution rate.
Increases in accumulated funds restricted for implementation of the Consent Decree and Proposition 2
(Discipline & Truancy) of the Tax Plan account for the $0.6 million increase in other restricted assets.

e As of June 30, 2002 the School Board reported combined ending fund balances 1n i1ts governmental fund
types of $68.5 million, representing a slight increase over the prior year of $154,943. As mentioned
previcusly, the majonty of theses funds are restricted for related obligations of the Tax Plan, Consent
Decree or other special purposes.

e The School Board’s Internal Service fund reported a combined deficit net asset balance as of June 30, 2002
of $3.6 million, comprised primarily of a deficir net asset balance of $7.1 million in the Medical Insurance
Fund. The Medical Insurance Fund deficit is a result of medical claims exceeding premium collections for
the last several years.

e The undesignated fund balance for the General Fund at June 30, 2002 was $13.3 million or 4.7% of General
Fund expenditures.
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East Baton Rouge Parish School System
Baton Rouge, Louisiana

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2002

USING THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The School Board’s basic financial statements consist of the government-wide financial statements, the fund
financial statements, the associated notes to those statements, and the required supplemental information of the
MD&A and budgetary comparison Schedules of the major funds. The statements are organized so the reader can
understand the operations of the School Board as a financial whole, 1.¢., an entire operating entity, its funds, and 1ts
fiduciary responsibilities. The government wide financial statements, consisting of the Statement of Net Assets and
the Statement of Activities (pages 1-2), and the Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets, provide highly consolidated
financial information and render a government-wide perspective of the School Board’s financial condition. The Fund
Financial Statcments (pages 3-9) provide the next level of detail and look at the School Board’s most significant
funds and a total of all other non-major funds.

Reporting the School District as a Whole
Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities present an aggregate view of the School
Board’s finances and a longer-term view of those finances. These statements seek to answer the question, “How did
the School Board as a whole do financially during the 2001-2002 fiscal year?” These statements include all non-
fiduciary assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting used by most private-sector enterprises. The
accrual basis takes into account all of the Board’s current year revenues and expenses repardless of when paid or
recetved,

These two statements report the School Board’s net assets and changes in those assets. By showing the
change in net assets for the year, the reader may ascertain whether the School Board’s financial condition has
improved or detenorated. The causes of the change may be the result of many factors, both financial and non-
financial in nature. Non-financial factors which may have an impact on the School Board’s financial condition
nclude the School Board’s property and sales tax base, student enrollment, facility conditions, required educational
programs for which hittle or no funding is provided or other external factors.

The following table reflects the condensed Statement of Net Assets for 2002:

Table ]
Combined Statement of Net Assets
Year-ended June 30, 2002 and June 30, 2001

(In Millions)
Increase
2002 2001 (Decrease)
Assets
Current & Other Assets $98.2 $97.9 $0.3
Capital Assets 122.0 71.7 50.3
Total Assets $220.2 $169.6 $50.6
Liabilities
Current Liabilities $33.3 $29.9 $3.4
Long-Term Liabilities 22.5 194 $£3.1
Total Liabilities $55.8 $49 3 $6.5
Net Assets
Invested 1n Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 51179 $70.8 $47.1
Restncted 41.4 51.2 (9.8)
Unrestricted 5.1 (1.7) 6.8
Total Net Assets 31644 $120.3 344.1

For more detailed information see Page {
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East Baton Rouge Parish School System
. Baton Rouge, Louisiana

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2002

The following table reflects an overview of Net Assets for the year-ended June 30, 2002:

2002 Net Assets

Unrestricted
Assets
Restricted
Assets ..
25%

e Joapital Assets
~~ Net of Debt
72%

Total assets increased by $50.6 million from the previous fiscal year with the majority of this increase in the
area of capital assets. Capital assets increased as a result of the construction in progress of three new schools,
additional classrooms at several school sites, and renovation and repair projects being completed or substantially
complete at many other sites. An open house was recently held at Northeast Elementary on May 23, 2002 to
celebrate the first new school opening in this district in over 25 years. These projects are funded by 0.51% of a one-
cent sales tax outlined in Proposition |.

An overall increase in total liabilites of $6.5 million is atmost evenly divided between current and long-
term liabilities. Current liabilities increased by $3.4 million and primarily as a result of group health insurance claims
outstanding at June 30, 2002. The increase of $3.1 million in long-term liabilities is related to the $2.2 million of
interest frec debt through the federally funded Quatified Zone Academy Bond (QZAB) program for the purpose ot
renovations and repairs at various school sites. The School Board also approved a $2.6 million capital lease for the
purpose of purchasing instructional software, and is scheduled to be paid over a four-year period.

Net assets increased $44.1 million as of June 30, 2002, with the largest amount of this increase in the area
of capital assets, net of related debt. As mentioned previously, as of June 30, 2002, the School Board had completed
the third year of a five-year capital improvement plan and encumbered approximately 67% of the tax plan budget.
Restricted net assets declined by $9.8 million as a result of the construction and renovation program reaching
completion. Unrestricted net assets increased from the previous year by $6.8 mitlion as a result of and improvement
in the General Fund’s sales and ad valorem tax collections.

XX1X



East Baton Rouge Parish School System
Baton Rouge, Louisiana

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2002

Reporting the School District’s Most Significant Funds

Fund Financial Statements

The analysis of the School Board’s major funds begins on page 3. Fund Financial Statements provide more
in-depth reporting of the School Board’s financial position and the results of operations. Fund basis financial
information is presented in the “Fund Financial Statements” Section. The School Board uses many funds to account
for the numerous funding sources provided annually. However, the Fund Financial Statements look at the School
Board’s most significant funds with all non-major funds presented in total in one column. These statements report
governmental activities on a more current basis rather than a long-term basis, indicating sources and uses of funding
and resources available for spending in future periods.

Fund Financial Statements provide more in-depth data on the School Board’s most significant funds, such
as its General Fund, Title I Fund, Tax Propositions 1, 2 and 3, and the Child Nutrition Program. These funds are
considered “major funds™ under GASB Statement No. 34,

Governmental Funds - Most of the School District’s activities are reported in governmental funds, which

generally focus on how money flows in and out of those funds, the balances that are left at year-end and the amount
available for spending in future periods. These funds are reported using the modified accrual basis of accounting,

which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash.

The relationship between governmental activities reported in the Basic Financial Statements and the
governmental funds reported in the Fund Financial Statements are reconciled 1n the financial statements.

Proprietary Funds - Proprietary funds use the samc basis of accounting as business-type activities in that
they attempt to recover costs through charges to the user. The School Board uses Intemal Services Funds to account
for activities for workers’ compensation, nisk management, and medical insurance.

Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets — This statement presents financial information relative to assets held by
the School Board on behalf of students (student activity funds) and others in a position of trust.

Governmental Activities

As reported in the Statement of Activities on page 2, the cost of the School Board’s governmental activities
for the year-ended June 30, 2002 was $379.3 million, a 2% increase from the prior year. The Statement of Activities
shows the cost of program services and the charges and grants offsetting some of the costs of those services. Grants
and contributions of $54.5 million and charges for services such as fees for school lunches, e-rate discounts, retiree
health insurance premiums, extended day tuition and summer school tuition totaling $9.2 million subsidized certain
programs of the School Board. The remaining amount was financed by the taxpayers in the parish through
Ad-Valorem and Sales and Use taxes totaling $207.0 million and State Revenue Sharing totaling $3.9 million. The
Minimum Foundation Program (MFP) from the State of Louisiana funded $143.1 million, Interest and Investment
carnings funded $2.0 million, E-Rate and other general revenues contributed the remaining $3.Imillion.

In Table II Statement of Activities, the costs of the School Board’s largest categories of expenses arc
presented as well as each program’s net cost (total cost less revenues generated by the activities). This “net cost”
presentation allows the parish taxpayers to deterrmine the remaining cost of the various categorics and also allows
them an opportunity to assess the cost of each function in comparison to the benefits they believe are provided by the
function.
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East Baton Rouge Parish School System
Baton Rouge, Louisiana

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2002

Table 11
Total and Net Cost of Governmental Activities
Year-ended June 30, 2002 and June 30, 2001

(In muillions)

Total Cost Net Cost
of Services of Services
2002 2001 2002 2001
Instruction
Regular Education Programs $131.4 $127.0 $126.3 $122.0
Special Education Programs 3.7 51.0 498 46.7
Other Instructional Programs 393 34.9 15.2 12.6
Support Services:
Pupil Support and Instructional Stafft  34.0 34.8 28.1 28.7
General and School Administration 27.5 293 26.8 27.1
Business and Central Services 7.9 8.3 7.2 8.0
Plant Operations and Maintenance 34.4 38.5 33.6 37.8
Student Transportation 21.7 20.7 19.8 19.0
Child Nutntion 26.8 244 5.5 34
Approprnation-Charter Schools 2.5 2.3 2.5 2.3
Interest on long-term Debt 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1
Total Governmental Activities $379.3 $371.3 $314.9 $ 307.7

For more detailed information see Page 2.

The increase in the cost of services from the previous year primarily represents the cost to support the pay
raise for certificated personnel approved by the Legislature. Funds were allocated in the General Appropriation Bill
of the 2001 Regular Session of the Louisiana Legislature to provide funding for the Minimum Foundation Program
(MFP) formula contained in Senate Concurrent Resolution (SCR) 139 of the 2001 Regular Session of the Louisiana
Legislature. SCR 139 provided for a minimum pay raise of $2,060 per fuli-time equivalent certificated employee,
$1,030 per certificated employee on sabbatical leave, and $1,030 per eligible part-time employees based on local
school system data as of October 1, 2000. The net cost of self insured claims increased by $3.0 million as of
June 30, 2002.

The Child Nutrition Program (CNP) continues to be the largest federaily funded program with $16.9 million
in federal revenue compared to Title 1T with $13.6 million. Student lunch prices have remained constant for twelve
consecutive years. The CNP’s breakfast program continues to be offered to all students at no cost. The no cost
breakfast saved the parents of students in this school system approximately $400,000 during the fiscal year. Overall

‘meal participation has continued to increase as the CNP’s staff continues to offer creative menus. The federal

reimbursement rate for meals served increased by approximately 3%.
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East Baton Rouge Parish School System
Baton Rouge, Louisiana

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2002

THE SCHOOL BOARD’S FUNDS

The School Board uses funds to control and permit measurement in the short-term of revenues and

expenditures of a particular activity or purpose (e.g., dedicated taxes and grant programs). The Fund Financial

Statements allow the School Board to demonsirate its stewardship over and accountability for resources provided by

taxpayers and other entities. These statements also allow the reader to obtain more insight into the financial
management of the School Board and assess further the School Board’s overall financial stability,

The fund balances for all funds for the fiscal year-ended June 30, 2002 are as follows:

®  As the School Board completed the fiscal year-ended June 30, 2002, its combined fund balance was
$68.5 million, as compared to a combined fund balance of $68.4 million as of June 30, 2001. The
majority of this fund balance is attributable to the three Propositions and is specifically dedicated.
Propositions 1, 2, and 3 fund balances were $18.3 million, $3.6 million, and $16.7million respectively

as of June 30, 2002. The Capttal Projects fund ended the year with a deficir unreserved fund balance of

$9.3 million and 15 a result of the total construction commitments of $27.6 million being recognized.
This deficit caused by encumbering the total of all construction commitments will be funded from
future sales tax collections of the “pay as you go” Tax Plan,

m At the close of the current fiscal year, the General Fund ended the year with a fund balance of

$22.1 million, an increase of $11.5 million when compared to the prior year. The unreserved and
undesignated portion of this fund balance is $13.3 million.

= The Child Nutrition and Other Governmental Special Revenue fund’s fund batances were $4.4 million
and $3.3 million respectively.

* The Intermal Service Fund ended the year with a deficit net asset balance at June 30, 2002 of
$3.6 million.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The School Board’s budget 1s prepared according to Louisiana law. During the course of the year, the
School Board revises its budget to take into constderation significant changes in revenues or expenditures. Louisiana
Revised Statute 39:1311 requires a budget amendment if either expected revenues are less or anticipated
expenditures are in excess of budgetary goals by five percent (5%) or more. The original budget for the School
Board was adopted on June 20, 2001 and the final revised budget was adopted on March 7, 2002.

A statement showing the School Board’s original and final budget compared with actual operating results is
provided 1n this CAFR beginning on page 36. Tables IIl and IV reflect a condensed comparative analysis of the
General Fund’s revenues and expenditures at June 30, 2002. The School Board’s year-end actual results were better
than had been budgeted, as conservative budgetary practices are customary. Revenues are forecast conservatively
and expenditures are budgeted 1n anticipation of all possible costs and projects.

The General Fund’s actual revenues exceeded projections by $2.9 million and increased $13.5 million when
compared to the prior year. Ad valorem tax revenue increased $4.4 million over last year as a result of a growth in
the 2001 pansh assessment roll of approximately 6.0% and an overall collection rate of 98%. Actual collections
exceed projections by $1.5 million or 2%. The total millage levied by the School Board is 43.45 mills, which
generates approximately $1.8 million per mill. Sales tax collections increased over prior year’s collections by
$1.3 million and exceeded projections by $1.2 million or 2%. Sales tax collections were projected at the same level
as the prior year to reflect the suppressed trend of the first six-month collections. Earnings on investments declined
$0.7 mullion mainly associated with the continued decline in the interest rate. Other local revenue increascd by

$0.7 milhion and mainly represents E-Rate funds that included an additional supplemental application allowed from
the 1999-2000 filing penod.
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East Baton Rouge Parish School System
Baton Rouge, Louisiana

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2002

State revenue sources from unrestricted grants-in-aid, MFP, reflect the additional funds of $5.4 million
appropriated by the Legislature in Level 3 of the formula to fund the State raisc for certificated staff. However, State
funds appropriated in Levels 1 and 2 of the formula have continued to decline as a result of the declhine 1n student
population. Student enrollment for the 2001-2002 school year was projected to decrease by approximately
1,600 students from the 2000-2001 school year. Actual October 1, 2001 student enrollment approved for funding by
the State was 51,323 students or 1,865 students less than the enrollment on October 1, 2000.

The reduction of $0.8 mullion in restricted State grants-in-aid represents the phase out of the Professional
Improvement Program (PIP) for instructional staff.

General Fund expenditures decreased by $7.4 mullion from the prior year. Expenditures have remained
relatively stable with the exception of the normal salary step increases and related benefit costs. Actual expenditures
were under final projections by $5.8 million with $5.5 mullion of this amount n the area of plant operations and
maintenance. However, encumbrances outstanding at year-end totaled 3$3.5 million with $2.5 million of the
encumbrances in the area of plant operations and maintenance that will be hiquidated 1n the subsequent fiscal year. A
corresponding amount was reserved from the fund balance to support these encumbrances. A decrease in the cost of
natural gas and electricity also contributed to a reduction in plant operations and maintenance when compared to the
prior year. Natural gas costs were unusually high in the previous fiscal year as a result of the rate adjustment charge.
Transportation cxpenditures declined by $2.3 million with the reduction in the budget for bus purchases from
$1.4 million to $0.5 million being the major factor,

As a result of the continued decline in student enrollment, MFP funding, and flat sales tax collections for
the past two years, the School Board approved a district wide Reduction in Force (RIF) effective July 1, 2001.
Instructional staff services decreased by $2.2 million as several administrative and support positions were affected by
the RIF along with budget reductions to budgets for equipment, purchased services and materials and supplies. The
unemployment compensation rate was increased from 0.12% to 0.30% as a result of the RIF.

Health insurance benefit premiums increased by approximately 3.0% for the calendar year 2001in an effort
to support the constantly rising health care costs. Additional recommendations for premiums and plan moditications
will be necessary in the next fiscal year to reduce the deficit in the Medtcal Insurance Fund.

The employer retirement rate declined from 14.2% to 13.1% from the previous year and helped to offset
some of the previously mentioned expenditure increases.

While the undesignated fund balance of $13.3 million is better than anticipated, this represents
approximately 5.0% of budgeted and actual expenditures. This amount is less than adequate for an operation of this
size in an environment with a declining student enrollment, unstable sales tax collections, deteriorating facilities,
increased State accountability requirements, and escalating health care costs. These 1mproved results, however, arc
welcomed and necessary to support the less than adequate fund balance projected for the 2002-2003 fiscal year-end.
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East Baton Rouge Parish School System
Baton Rouge, Louisiana

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2002

Tabie 111
General Fund Revenue
Year-ended June 30, 2002 and June 30, 2001

(In Millions)
Increase

REVENUE 2002 2001 (Decrease)
Local Revenue

Ad Valorem Taxes $80.2 $75.8 $4.4

Sales and Use Tax 66.7 65.4 1.3

Earnings on Investment 0.9 1.6 (0.7)

Extended Day Program Tuition 0.4 0.5 (0.1)

Other 2.7 2.0 0.7

Total Local Revenue $150.9 $145.3 $5.6

State Sources

Unrestricted Grants-In-Aid, MFP $138.7 $130.3 $8.4

Revenue Sharing 3.9 3.8 0.1

Restricted Grants-In-Aid 3.3 4.1 (0.8)

Total State Sources $145.9 $138.2 $7.7
Federal $0.7 $0.5 $0.2
Total Revenues $297.6 284.1 $135
For more detailed information see Page 30.
2002 General Fund Revenue
Federal
0%
State
t ocal
49%
9% 51%

XXXV



0000000000080 0000000000000000000000000000000

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

East Baton Rouge Parish School System
. Baton Rouge, Louisiana

June 30, 2002

Table IV
(General Fund Revenue
Year-ended June 30, 2002 and June 30, 2001

Increase
(Decrease)

$1.1
2.8
(0.2)

($0.2)
(2.2)
0.5
(0.1)
(1.0)
(7.1)
(2.3)

$0.0
2.1

$(0.2)
0.0

($7.4)

{(In Millions)

EXPENDITURES 2002 2001
Instruction

Regular Education Programs $104.5 $103.4

Special Education Programs 44.7 43.0

Other Education Programs 12.5 12.7
Support

Pupil Support Services $15.3 $15.2

Instructional Staff Services 7.8 10.0

General Administration Services 8.0 7.5

School Administration Services 17.1 17.2

Business and Central Services 6.7 1.7

Plant Operation and Mamtenance 33.0 39.1

Transportation 18.8 21.1
Appropriations

Charter School $2.3 $2.3

Consent Decree 12.0 9.9
Debt Service

Principal $1.2 $1.0

Interest 0.1 0.1
Total Expenditures $284.0 $201.4
For more detailed information see Page 36.

2002 General Fund Expenditures
Debt
Approp Service
5% 0%
Support D >N )
38% || A Instruction
— 57%
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East Baton Rouge Parish School System
Baton Rouge, Louisiana

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2002

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

At June 30, 2002, the School Board has approximately $122.0 million invested in a broad range of capttal
assets, including land, buildings, furniture, vehicles, computers, and other equipment. This amount is net of
accumulated depreciation to date. Increases during the year represent additions to those categories, while decreases
represent retirements of assets during the year, depreciation of depreciable assets for thc year, and changes in
accounting thresholds for capitalization. Table V shows the net book value of capital assets at the end of the 2002

and 2001 fiscal years.

Table V
Capital Assets at
June 30, 2002and June 30, 2001
{In Millions)

2002 2001

Land $8.6 $8.9
Buildings and Improvements 54 .4 38.7
Furniture and Equipment 8.1 8.8
Construction in Progress 0.9 143
Totals $122.0 $71.7

For more detailed information see Page 25.

During the current year, additions of $75.7 million of fixed assets were capitalized while $24.7 million were
deleted. Depreciation for the year-ended June 30, 2002 was $3.2 million for buildings and improvements and $4.1
million for furmture and equipment. Major construction and renovation projects will continue for the 2002-2003
fiscal year and will be funded with the 0.51% Proposition 1 “pay-as-you go” sales tax approved by the voters in 1998
for a five-year period. As mentioned eatlier, Northeast Elementary held its’ Open House on May 23, 2002 and will
open for students 1n August 2002 at a cost of approximately $10.4 million. This cost will be capitalized and
depreciated over an expected life of 50 years. Northeast Elementary is the first new school facility completed in this

school district in over 25 years.

Debt

At June 30, 2002, the School Board had outstanding QZAB notes payable of $2.2 million that are scheduled
for repayment by November 2015. The School Board also had $1.9 million in capital lease at June 30, 2002
scheduled for repayment by June 2005. In accordance with LSA-R.S.39: 562 (L), the School Board is legally
restricted from incurring long-term bonded debt 1n excess of 25 percent of the assessed value of the taxable property

(including homestead cxempt and nonexempt property) within the pansh. At June 30, 2002, the statutory limit is
$609,364,555.

Other long-term obligations include accrued sick leave and annual leave. The balance at June 30, 2002 of
both current and long-term obligations was $18.3million.
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East Baton Rouge Pansh School System
Baton Rouge, Louisiana

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2002

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET

The financial well being of the School Board is tied in a large measure to the State funding formula and the
sales and property tax base. Following many years of economic expansion in the Baton Rouge economy, driven by
retail sales and employment increases, retail sales have been suppressed since late 1999. This 1s compared to annual
retail sales increases in excess of 5.0% for several years prior to that time. Actual sales tax collections for the fiscal
year-ended June 30, 2002 reflect an increase of 2% from the prior year, which 1s the first increase since 1999. A
steady increase in car sales contributed to this increase.

The imtial fund balance projected for the General Fund for the fiscal year-ended Jume 30, 2003 is
$12.2 million, following $12.8 million in budget reductions. The actual fund balance for fiscal year-ended 2001-
2002 was an improvement when compared with final projections. As a result the 2002-2003 projected fund balance
will increase by approximately $6.0 million. The recently reported October 1, 2002 student enroliment figure of
51,132 students {excludes Pre-Kindergarten) is 868 students more than projected for MFP funding in the 2002-2003
General Fund Budget and 191 students less than the prior year. Based on the current average per pupil estimate, this
will increase MFP funds by approximately $2.4 million. MFP funding exciudes Pre-Kindergarten enrollment.
Addstional expenditure reductions will be necessary for the adverse financial impact of approximately $10.7 million
associated with the City of Baker and Zachary School System’s separation from this district in the fall of 2003. In
addition, an increase in health care premiums will also be necessary for the next budget year. This will result in a
continued need to contain costs and seek other expenditure reductions. The current state of the nation may result in a
further deterioration of the sales tax base and a subsequent reduction in the General Fund Revenue.

CONTACTING THE SCHOOL BOARD’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

While this CAFR is designed to provide full and complete disclosure of the financial condition and
operations of the School Board, citizens groups, taxpayers, parents, students, other pansh officials, investors or
creditors may need further details. To obtain such details, please contact Charlotte D. Placide, Deputy
Superintendent for Operations and Budget Management, East Baton Rouge Parish School Systemn, Post Office Box
2950, Baton Rouge, and La. 70821. Feel free to also contact us by calling (225) 922-5650 during regular office
hours, Monday through Friday, 8:00 a.m. to 4:30 p.m., Central Time, or e-mail at ¢placide@ebrpss.k12.1a.us,
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EAST BATON ROUGE PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Baton Rouge. Louisiana
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2002

(With comparative totals for June 30, 2001)

0000000000000 0000000000000000000000000000000

ASSETS
2002 2001
Cash and cash equivalents $ 65,050,190 $ 65417953
Recetvables
Accounts 558,598 1,201,063
Sales tax 12,478,108 11,683,805
Ad valorem tax 1,372,547 1,591,114
Due from governments 15,769,584 15,338,917
Inventory 2.954.646 2,682,763
Capital Assets
Land and construction in progress 59,543,683 23,237,906
Buildings and equipment, net of acumulated depreciation 62,515,236 48,439,169
TOTAL ASSETS £ 220,242 592 $ 169,592,690
LIABYLITIES AND NET ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Accounts, salaries and other payables 5 8,086,904 8,850,323
Deferred revenues 753,599 579,596
Claims payable 15,644,177 11,279,202
Due to external parties (fiduciary fund) 8,837,020 9,163,965
Long-term liabilties
Due within one year 3,393,298 2,839,774
Due 1n more than one year 19,093,328 16,615,767
TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 55,808,326 49,328,627
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt $ 117,937,595 70,772,075
Restricted for:
Capital improvements 20,009,200 33,794,282
Compensation 16,749,863 13,437,951
Other 4,647 459 4,017,395
Unrestricted 5,000,149 (1,757,640)
TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 164,434.266 $ 120,264,063

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.



EAST BATON ROUGE PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

Baton Rouge. Louisiana
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002
Net (Expense)
Revenue and
Program Revenues Changes i Net
Operating Capital Assets
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental
Expenses Services Contributions  Contributions Unit
Functions/Pro
Instruction:
Regular education programs 131,388,055 $ 1,493,022 3 3,582,091 3 - $ (126,312,942)
Special education programs 53,709,898 684,472 3,235,404 - {49,790,022)
Other education programs 39,352,603 1,013,731 22,400,298 681,365 (15,257,109}
Support Services:
Pupil support services 20,235,682 219,178 1,914,677 - (18,102,427)
Instructional staff services 13,756,543 118,772 3,608,812 - {(9,968,959)
General administration services 8,615,549 10,204 - - (8,605,345)
School administration services 18,683,964 209,790 301,438 - (18,172,736)
Business and central services 7,434,464 42,856 257,851 - (7,133,757)
Plant operation and maintenance 34,775,378 328,563 718,794 - (33,728,021)
Transportation 21,975,939 657,756 1,478,545 - (19,839,638)
Child Nutrition 26,804,429 4,391,685 16,931,461 - (5,481,283)
Appropriation - charter schools 2,494,800 8,163 - - (2,486,637)
Interest on long-term debt 49,595 - _ - - (49,595)
Total Governmental Activities 379,276,899 0,178,192 54,488,871 681,365 (314,928,471)
General Revenues
Taxes:
Ad-Valorem taxes 81,549,651
Sales and use taxes 125,380,879
State revenue sharing 3,034,795
Grants and contributions not restricted to specific purposes:
Minimurr Foundation Program 143,066,171
Interest and investment earnings 2,016,482
Miscellancous 3,150,696
Total general revenues 359,098,674
Change in Net Assets 44,170,203
Net Assets - July 1, 2001 120,264,063
Net Assets - June 30, 2002 ¢ 164,434,266

—

The accompanying notes are an integral part of thus statement.
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EAST BATON ROUGE PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

Baton Rouge, Louisiana

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Balance Sheet
JUNE 30, 2002
Proposition 1
Capital
General Title I Projects
ASSETS
Cash apd cash eguivalents $ 34,638,714 - $ 14,071,307
Receivables:
Accounts 205,437 13,171 159,937
Sales tax 6,583,080 - 3,094,581
Ad valorem tax 1,372,547 - -
Due from other funds - - 3,248,532
Due from other governments 879,230 2,035,158 -
Inventory 2,687,177 - -
TOTAL ASSETS § 46,366,185 § 2048329 $ 20,574,857
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $§ 2349604 3 262,584 § 2,299,491
Salanies and benefits payable 2,137,538 - -
Due to other funds 19,489,930 1,555,186 -
Deferred revenues 259,127 230,559 -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 24,236,199 2,048,329 2,299.491
Fund balances:
Reserved for inventory 2,687,177 - -
Reserved for encumbrances 5,110,143 - 27,607,952
Unreserved, reported m:
General Fund:
Designated for costs required under consent decree 1,080,289 - -
Undesignated 13,252377 - -
Special Revenue Fund - - -
Capital Projects Fund - - (9,332,586)
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 22,129,986 - 18,275,366
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES $ 46,366,085 § 2048329 $ 20,574,857
= e — — —— i
The accompanying notes are en integral part of this sfaternent
-3 -
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Proposition 2 Propaosition 3 Child Other
Discipline Compensation Nutrition Governmental Total

3 3,101,458 $ 8,567,390 % 5021 $ L1,195000 $ 61,579,390
- 2,306,988 93 - 2,685,626
493,459 - - . 10,171,120
9 - - - - 1,372,547
. - 5,914,104 2,621,862 1,827,936 13,612,434
- - 1,884,547 10,970,649 15,769,534
. - . 267,469 - 2,954,646
: $ 3,594,917 16,788,482 § 4,778,992 § 13,993,585 $§ 108,145,347
. $ 38,541 § 38,619 § 124,178  § 681,533 $§ 5,764,550
¢ - - : 20,204 2,157,742
. 19,206 - - 9.891.642 30,955,964
. - - 210,246 53,667 753,590
. 27,747 38,619 334,424 10,647,046 39,631,855
. - - 57,223 - 2,744,400
. - - 3,396,091 - 36,114,186
. - - - - 1,080,289
- - - - 13,252,377
. 3 567,170 16,749,863 991,254 3,346,539 24,654,826
. - - - - (9,332,586)
. 3,567,170 16,749,863 4,444,568 3,346,539 68,513,492
‘ $ 3,594,917 § 16788482 $ 4,778,992 $§ 13,993,585 § 108,145347
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EAST BATON ROUGE PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Baton Rouge, Louisiana
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2002

Total Fund Balances at June 30, 2002 - Governmental Funds § 68,513,492
Cost of capital assets at June 30, 2002 $ 221,467,745
Less: Accumulated Depreciation as of June 30, 2002:

Buildings (72,378,640)

Movable property (27,030,186) 122,058,619
Consolidation of internal service funds (3,651,519)
Elimination of interfund assets and liabilities

Due from other funds (22,118,944)

Due to other funds 22,118,944 -
Long-term habilities at June 30, 2002:

Bonds Payable (2,209,001}

Capital Lease (1,912,233)

Compensated absences payable (18,365,302) (22,486,626)

Total net assets at June 30, 2002 - Governmental Activities $ 1 534,434,266

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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EAST BATON ROUGE PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Baton Rouge, l.ousiana
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDIT S AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2602

Proposttion 1
Capital Proposition 2
General Title I Projects Miscipline
REVENUES T
Local sources:
Ad valorem taxes 80,229,776 - - -
Sales and use tax 66,670,948 - 29,922,142 4,693,541
Eamings on jnvestments 943,905 - 540,490 61,969
Exiended Day Program tuition 386,122 ; - ]
Other 2,886,903 - 681,365 -
State sources:
Unrestricted grants-m-asd, MYT 138,731,256 " . -
Revenue shanng 3,934,795 - . -
Restricted grants-in-aid 3252,118 a . )
Federal grants 520,013 13,566,970 i i
TOTAL REVENUES 297,555,§£ 13,566,970 __;3; 1,243,997 4,755,510
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Instruction:
Regular education programs 104,497,036 - - 2,444,071
Special educafion programs 44,689,680 - - 100,941
Other education programs 12,560,720 12,576,922 - 12,114
Support:
Pupil support services 15,325,683 135,215 i 862,819
Insiructional staff servnices 7,773,200 1,682,605 312,871 122,529
General administration services 7,968,709 6,882 289,776 46,918
School administration services 17,125,946 - - 137,170
Business and central services 6,677,296 46,124 - -
Plant operation and mainienance 33,014,060 184,541 - 248,139
Transportation 18,855,883 B7,526 - 40,986
Child Nutntion - - - -
Appropriation-Charter schools 2,286,951 - - -
Consent Decree 12,011,102 - - -
Facility acquisition and consiruction . - 47,360,267 -
Debt service - Principal 1,183,525 500,000 - -
Debt service - Interest 70,299 - - -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 284,040,090 15,219,815 47962914 4,015,687
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES 13,5 15,‘315_ {1,652,845) (16,718,917) 739,823

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.




0000000 0000000000000 00000000000000000060000O0

Proposition 3 Child Other

Compensation Nutrition Govemnmental
- . 5 1,319,875
24,094,248 . -
288,104 - .

- 4,125,978 848,361

- 4,334 915 -

- - 5,597,434

- 16,931,461 14,620,875
24382352 25,392,354 22,386,545
10,434,252 - 3,256,128
3,968,742 - 3,633 397
874,888 - 12,649,878
1,551,400 - 1,970,926
703,856 - 2,552,278
258,667 . -
1,004,182 - 58,166
347,069 - 236,152
1,076,350 - 694,792
849,025 . 301,044

. 26,175,170 -

- 191,594 -
21,070,440 26,366,764 25,352,761
3,311,912 (974,410) (2,966,216)

Total

$ 81,549,651
125,380,879
1,934,468
386,122
8,542,607

143,066,171
3,934,795
8,849 552

45,639,319

419,283,564

120,631,487
52,392,760
38,674,522

19,846,052
13,149,339
8,570,952
18,325,464
7,306,641
35,217,882
20,134,464
26,175,170
2,478,545
12,011,102
47,360,267
1,683,525
70,299

424,028,471

(4,744,907)

(continned)



EAST BATON ROUGE PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

Baton Rouge, Lousiana

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2602

General

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {(USES)

Proceeds from issuanace of long-term debt 3 -
Transfers in 1,775,367
Transfers out (3,738,268)

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES) (1,962,901)
EXCESS OF REYENUES AND
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
OVER EXPENDITURES AND
OTHER USES 11,552,845
Fund balances, June 30, 2001 10,577,141
FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30, 2002 $ 22,129,986

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

Proposition 1
Capital Proposition 2
Title I Projects Discipline

$ 2,649,849 \) - s .
- 1,200,000 -

(997,004) - -
1,652,845 1,200,000 -

. (15,518,917) 739,823

- 33,794,283 2,827,347

$ . $ 18275366 8§ 3,567,170
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Proposition 3 Child Cther
Compensation Nutrition Governmental
b N 2,250,000
2,761,459
(77,000) (924,554)
(77,000) 4,086,905
3,311,512 (1,051,410) 1,120,689
13,437,951 5,495,978 2,225,850
5 16,749,863 4,444,568 § 3,346,539

Total

4,899,849
5,736,826
(5,736,826)

4,899,849

)

154,942

68,358 550

68,513,492

(concluded)




EAST BATON ROUGE PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Baton Rouge, Louisiana
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS -
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES. AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE TO STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Excess of Revenues and Other Financing Sources
over Expenditures and Other Uses - Total Governmental Funds $ 154,942

Capital Assets:
Capital outlay and other expenditures capitalized $ 57,728,895

Depreciation expense for year ended June 30, 2002 (7,347,049) 50,381,846

Change in net assets of internal service funds (3,356,205)
Long Term Debt:

Proceeds of long -term debt, recorded as liability (4,899,849)

Principal portion of debt service payments 1,683,525

Excess of mterest paid over interest acrued 20,706

Excess of compensated absences used over amounts earned 185,238 (3,010,380)
Change in Net Assets - Governmental Activities $ 44,170,203

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
- 10 -
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EAST BATON ROUGE PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

PROPRIETARY FUNDS - INTERNAL SERVICE

Baton Rouge, Louisiana

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

Due from other funds
Remmbursements receivable

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Liabilities:
Accounts payable

Claims payable

TOTAL LIABILITIES

Net Assets:
Unrestricted

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
NET ASSETS

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2002

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Internal Service
Funds

$ 3,470,800
8,506,510
179,960

S 15157,270

- 164,612
15,644,177

15,808,789

(3,651,519)

$ 12,157,270




EAST BATON ROUGE PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

Baton Ronge, Lousiana
PROPRIETARY FUNDS - INTERNAL SERVICE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2002

Internal Service
Funds
OPERATING REVENUES
Premiums received $ 60,771,225
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 60,771,225
OPERATING EXPENSES
Claims expense 58,804,456
Insurance premtums 2,596,518
Administrative fees 2,308,467
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 64,209,441
NET OPERATING INCOME (3,438,216)
NON-OPERATING REVENUES
Interest mcome 82,011
TOTAL NON-OPERATING INCOME _ 82,011
Change in net assets (3,356,205)
Net Assets, at June 30, 2001 (295,314)
NET ASSETS, AT JUNE 30, 2002 b £3,65 1,5 19!

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

-12 -



EAST BATON ROUGE PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

Baton Rouge, Lonsiana
PROPRIETARY FUNDS - INTERNAL SERVICE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash premiums received
Cash paid in claims and benefits
Cash paid for expenses
NET CASH PROVIDED BY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Advances from other funds
NET CASH PROVIDED BY
NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest Income
NET CASH PROVIDED BY
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH
Cash at begmning of year

Cash at end of year

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided

(used) by operating actrvities
Operating Income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to
net cash provided by (used m) operating activities:
Changes m:
Reimbursement receivables
Accounts and claims payable
NET CASH PROVIDED BY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
13 -

Internal Service
Funds

$ 61,162,101

(57,035,999)

(3,095,644)

1,030,458

53,456

33,456

82,011

82,011

1,165,925

2,304,875

83470800

$ (3,438,216)

3

390,876
4,077,798

1,030,458




EAST BATON ROUGE PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Baton Rouge, Louisiana

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
JUNE 30, 2002
Agency
Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents ¢ 5,491,468
Accounts receivable 101,210
Due from other funds 8,837,020
TOTAL ASSETS $ 14,429,698
e —
LIABILITIES
Benefits payable $ 2,010,344
Salaries payable 5,156,485
Payroll withholdings payable 1,771,401
Amounts held for other groups 5,491,468
TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 14,429,698

— e E—

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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EAST BATON ROUGE PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Baton Rouge, Louisiana

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION

The East Baton Rouge Parish School Board (School Board) is a corporate body created under Louisiana Revised Statutes 17:51.

A board consisting of 12 members (the Board) elected from legally established districts is charged with the management and
operation of the school system.

The school system is composed of a central office, 101 schools and 11 support facilities. Student enrollment as of October 2001
was approximately 52,300. The School Board employs approximately 7,300 persons, approximately 4,400 of whom are directly
involved in the instructional process. The remainder provide ancillary support such as general admimistration, repair and
maintenance, bus transportation and food service. The regular school term normally begins during the latter half of August and
is completed in the end of May.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The School Board complies with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). The School Board's reporting entity
applies al] relevant Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements. Proprietary funds apply Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements and Accounting Principles Board (APB) opinions 1ssued on or before
November 30, 1989, unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements, in which case, GASB
prevails.

This financial report has been prepared in conformity with GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements - and
Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments, issued in June 1999, The following is 2 summary of
the School Board's significant policies:

A.  Financial Reporting Entity

GASB Statement 14 establishes criteria for determining the governmental reporting entity and component units that
should be included within the reporting entity. Under provisions of this Statement, the School Board 1s considered a
primary government, since it is a special purpose government that has a separately elected governing body, is legally
separate, and 1s fiscally independent of other state or local governments. As used in GASB Statement 14, fiscally
independent means that the School Board may, without the approval or consent of another governmental entity, determine
or modify 1ts own budget, levy its own taxes or set rates or charges, and issue bonded debt. The School Board also has
no component units, defined by GASB Statement 14 as other legally separate organizations for which the elected School
Board members are financially accountable. There are no other primary governments with which the School Board has a
significant relationship.

Certain units of local government over which the School Board exercises no authority, such as the City-Parish
government and other independently elected officials, are excluded from the accompanying financial statements. These
units of government are considered separate from those of the parish School Board. The School Board is not a

component unit of any other entity and does not have any component units which require inclusion in the general purpose
financial statements.

-15 -



EAST BATON ROUGE PARISH SCHOOIL BOARD
Baton Rouge, Louisiana

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

B.

Basis of Presentation

The School Board’s Basic Financial Statements consist of the government-wide statements on all of the non-fiduciary
activities and the fund financial statements (individual major fund and combined non-major fund). The statements are
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as applied to
governmental umts. Private sector standards of accounting and financial reporting 1ssued prior to December 1, 1989,
generally are followed in both the government-wide financial statements and the proprietary fund financial statements to
the extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the GASB. Governments also have the
option of following subsequent private-sector guidance for their proprictary funds, subject to the same limitation. The
School Board has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements include the statement of net assets and the statement of activities for all non-
fiduciary activities. As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been removed fiom these statements.
Exceptions to the general rule are advances between fiduciary funds and the various functions of the School Board. The
govermment-wide presentation focuses primarily on the sustainability of the School Board as an entity and the change in
aggregate financial position resulting from the activities of the fiscal period.

All programs of the School Board are considered Governmental Activities which normally are supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues.

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function are offset by
programrevenues. Program revenues included in the Statement of Activities are derived from parties outside the School

Board’s taxpayers or citizenry, as a whole; program revenues reduce the cost of the function to be financed from the
School Board’s general revenues.

The School Board reports all direct expenses by function in the Statement of Activities. Direct expenses are those that
are clearly identifiable with a function. Indirect expenses of other functions are not allocated to those functions but are
separately in the Statement of Activities. Depreciation expense, which can be specifically identified by function, is
included in the direct expenses of each function. Interest on general long-term debt is considered an indirect expense and
is reported separately on the Statement of Activities.

Fund Financial Statements

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement focus. All
Governmental Funds are accounted for using a current financial resources measurement focus. With this measurement
focus, only current assets and current liabilities generally are included on the balance sheet. Operating statements of

these funds present increases (i.e., revenues and other financial sources) and decreases (i.e., expenditures and other
financing uses) in current assets.

The tund financial statements are very similar to the traditional government fund statements as presented by governments
prior to the issuance of GASB 34. Emphasis is now on the major funds in either the governmental or business-type

categories. Non-major funds (by category) or fund type are summarized into a single colurmnn. All funds of the School
Board are categorized as governmental activities.

- 16 -
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EAST BATON ROUGE PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Baton Rouge, Louisiana

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

B.

Basis of Presentation (continued)

Fund Financial Statements (continued)

The daily accounts and operations of the School Board continue to be organized on the basis of funds and account
groups, each of which is considered a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a
separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, equity, revenues, and expenditures or expenses,
as appropriate. Government resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based npon the purpose for
which they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled.

The funds of the School Board are classified into three broad categories: Governmental, Proprietary and Fiduciary.

Governmental Fund Types:
The School Board reports the following governmental funds as major funds:

General Fund - The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the School Board. It is used to account for all
financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Titlel Fund - Title I includes programs in the areas of language development, reading, and math. These programs strive
to meet the special needs of economically and educationally deprived children through federal funds for teachers, aides,
instructionial materials, equipment and parental involvement.

Proposition! — Capital Projects Fund —-The Proposition 1fund accounts for the proceeds of a .51 cent sales tax approved
as part of a plan to improve school facilities. The intent of the plan tax is to improve infrastructure in an effort to provide
a "safe and dry" environment for the students, staff, and public in the school system.

Proposition 2- Discipline Funds — The proposition 2 fund accounts for the proceeds of a .08 cent sales tax approved as
part of a plan to improve discipline in the schools. The intent of the plan is to remove disrptive and academically
deficient students from the regular education classroom, reduce truancy and provide more effective alternative education.

Proposition 3 Compensation Fund —The proposition 3 fund accounts for the proceeds ofa .41 cent sales tax approved as
part of a plan to improve compensation. The intent of the plan is to improve ability to recruit and retain certified and
qualified teachers, assistant principals and principals; to have more productive support employees; and to have the ability
to reward performance that meets and/or exceeds standards.

Child Nutrition Fund - The Child Nutrition Fund is used to account for the operattons of the school food service program
that operates during the regular school term and during the summer break. The basic goals of the school food service
program 1s to serve nutritionally adequate, attractive and moderately priced meals, to help children grow socially and
emotionally, to extend educational influences to the homes of school children, and to provide learning expenences that
will improve children's food habits with the uttimate goal of physically fit adults.

Proprietary Fund Type:

Internal Service Funds - Internal Service Funds are used to account for the financing of services provided by one
department or agency to other departments or agencies of the governmental unit, or to other governmental units, on a
cost-reitnbursement basis. The Workers' Compensation Fund, the Risk Management Fund and the Medical Insurance
Fund are reported as Internal Service Funds.
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EAST BATON ROUGE PARISH SCHOOIL. BOARD
Baton Rouge, Louisiana

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

B.

Basis of Presentation (continued)

Fund Financial Statements (continued)

Fiduciary Fund Types:

Agency Funds - Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by the School Board as an agent for individuals, private
organizations or other governmental units and/or other funds. The School Board employs two separate Agency funds, one
fund accounts for the transactions of the student activity accounts maintained at the schools, and another to account for
voluntary and mandatory payroll withholdings.

Basis of Accounting/Measurement Focus

Government-Wide Financial Statements (GWTES)

The GWFS were prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.
Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets and liabilities resulting from exchange or exchange-like transactions are
recognized when the exchange occurs (regardless of when cash is received or disbursed). Revenues, expenses, gains,
losses, assets and liabilities resulting from non-exchange transactions are recognized in accordance with the requirements
of GASB No. 33, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Non-exchange transactions.

Fund Financial Statements (FFS)

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement focus. All
Govemmental Funds are accounted for using a current financial resources measurement focus. With this measurement
focus, only current assets and current liabilities generally are included on the balance sheet. Operating statements of

these funds present increases (i.e., revenues and other financial sources) and decreases (i.e., expenditures and other
financing uses) m net current assets.

The Proprietary Fund type is accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement focus. With this measurement
focus, all assets and all hiabilities associated with the operation of these funds are included on the balance sheet. The

Proprietary Fund type's operating statement presents increases (e.g., revenues) and decreases (e.g., expenses) in net total
assets.

Governmental and Agency Funds are accounted for on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The following
paragraphs describe the revenue recognition practices under that basis.
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EAST BATON ROUGE PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Baton Rouge, Louisiana

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

C.  Basis of Accounting/Measurement Focus {continued)

Revenues

Governmental fund revenues resulting from exchange transactions are recognized in the fiscal year in which the exchange
takes place and meets the government’s availability criteria (susceptible to accrual). Available means that the resources
will be collected within the current fiscal year or are expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to be used to pay
liabilities of the current fiscal year. Charges for services, fines and forfeits, and most governmental miscellaneous
revenues, including investment earnings are recorded as eamed since they are measurable and available. The School
Board’s defimition of available means expected to be received within sixty days of the end of the fiscal year.

Non-exchange transactions, in which the School Board received value without directly giving value in return, includes
sales tax, property tax, special assessments, grants, entitlements, and donations. Property taxes are considered
measurable in the calendar year of the tax levy if collected soon enough to meet the availability criteria. Sales taxes and
g10s5 receipts business taxes are considered “measurable” when the underlying transaction occurs and meets the
availability criteria. Anticipated refunds of such taxes are recorded as fund liabilities and reductions of revenue when
they are measurable and valid. Special Assessments are recognized as revenues only to the extent that individual
installments are considered current assets in the governmental fund types. Revenue from grants, entitlements and
donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility
requirements include timing requirements, which specify the year when the resources can be used.

Expenditures
Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting when the related fund lLiability is

incurred. Costs of accumulated unpaid vacation, sick leave and other employee benefit amounts are reported in the
period due and payable rather than the period earned by employees, and general long-term obligations principal and
interest payments are recognized only when due.

The Proprietary Fund type is accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting; revenues are recognized when earned
and expenses are recognized when incurred.

D. Budget and Budgetary Accounting

The School Board follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements:

The General Fund and the Special Revenue Funds are the only funds with legally required budgets. The General Fund
budget and the Special Revenue Funds' budgets are adopted on an annual basis. These budgets include proposed
expenditures and the means of financing them.

The Capital Projects fund’s budget is adopted on a project basis, since such projects may be started and completed at any
time during the year or may extend beyond one fiscal year.

Prior to September 15, the Superintendent submits to the Ad-Hoc budget committee a proposed annual appropriated
budget for the General Fund for the fiscal year commencing the prior July 1. Public hearings are conducted to obtain
taxpayer comments. Upon submission to the Board, the General Fund budget is legally enacted through adoption by the
Board.
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EAST BATON ROUGE PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Baton Rouge, Louisiana

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D.

Budget and Budgetary Accounting (continued)

Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for the General Fund and
Special Revenue Funds. For the Capital Projects Fund, the level of budget control 1s at the fund, department or project
level, and expenditures/encumbrances by policy should not exceed appropriations. The School Board approves budgets
at the fund level, and the Superintendent is authorized to transfer amounts between line ttems within any fund.

Budgets are prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Unencumbered appropriations in the General Fund
lapse at the end of the fiscal year. Encumbered appropriations at year end that have been approved by the Board are
generally expended during the next fiscal year's operations, assuming that the underlying liability is ultimately incurred.
Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted or as amended by the Board. Legally, the Board must adopt a balanced
budget; that is, total budgeted revenues and other financing sources including fund balance must equal or exceed total
budgeted expenditures and other financing uses. State statutes require the School Board to amend its budgets when
revenues plus projected revenues within a fund are expected to be less than budgeted revenues by five percent or more
and/or expenditures within a fund are expected to exceed budgeted expenditures by five percent or more.

Special Revenue Funds' budgets that are not grant-oriented have annual appropriated budgets adopted prior to September
15 by the Board. Grant funds are inclnded in Special Revenue Funds, and their budgets are adopted at the time the grant
applications are approved by the grantor. Unencumbered appropriations of grant-oriented Special Revenue Funds are
reappropriated at the beginning of the following fiscal year. Unencumbered appropriations of certain nongrant-oriented
Special Revenue Funds lapse at the end of the fiscal year. These budgets are adopted on a modified accrual basis.

Encumbrances

Encumbrances represent commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods or services, Encumbrances oufstanding
at year end in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet are reported as reservations of fund balance. These outstanding
encumbrances are added to the budget in the subsequent year and are reported as expenditures when incurred.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents mclude interest-bearing demand deposits and short-term investments (usually time certificates
of deposit), including investments in the Louisiana Asset Management Pool, as described below, with 2 maturity date
within three (3) months of the date of acquisition.

State statutes authorize the School Board to invest in United States bonds, treasury notes, or certificates and time deposits
of state banks organized under Louisiana law and national banks having principal offices in Louisiana. In addition, local
governments In Louisiana are authorized to invest in the Louisiana Asset Management Pool, Inc. (LAMP), a nonprofit
corporation formed by an initiative of the State Treasurer and organized under the Yaws of the State of Louistana, which
operates a local government investment pool.

The School Board maintains four checking accounts, exclusive of the individual schools’ bank accounts, with the School
Board's fiscal agent bank. These four accounts are the consolidated cash account and three interest bearing imprest

accounts for disbursements of payrolls, disbursements to vendors, and health care providers.

Interest earned on investments is distributed to the individual funds based on the invested balance of the participating
fund during the year.

- 20 -
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EAST BATON ROUGE PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Baton Rouge, Louisiana

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continned)

G.

Inventory

Government-Wide Level
Inventory is stated at average cost and consists of expendable supplies held for consumption. The costs of inventory
items are recognized as expenses when used.

Fund Level

Inventory of the general fund is stated at average cost and consists of expendable supplies held for consumption. The
costs of inventory items are recognized as expenditures when used. The reportable inventories are equally offset by a
fund balance reserve which indicates that they do not constitute "available spendable resources" even though they are a
component of total assets.

Inventory of the Child Nutrition Special Revenue Fund consists of food purchased by the School Board and commodities
granted by the United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) through the Louisiana Department of Agriculture and
Forestry. Inventory items purchased are valued at average cost. Costs are recorded as expenditures at the time individual
items are consumed {consumption method). Commodities are assigned values based on information provided by the
USDA, also on average cost basis. The amount of commodity inventory is included in deferred revenue until consumed.

Capital Assets

All capital assets are capitalized at historical cost, or estimated historical cost for assets where actual historical cost is not
available. Donated assets are recorded as capital assets at their estimated fair market value at the date of donation. The
School Board maintains threshold levels for capitalizing capital assets as follows:

Movable capital assets with a cost of $5,000 or more per unit.
All land and land improvements with a cost of $25,000 or more.
Buildings and building mprovements that extend the useful life of a building with a cost of $25,000 or more.

Capital assets are recorded in the GWFS, but are not reported in the FFS. All capital assets are depreciated using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful lives. Since surplus assets are sold for an immaterial amount when
declared as no longer needed for public school purposes by the School Board, no salvage value is taken into
consideration for depreciation purposes. Useful lives vary from 5 to 20 years for equipment, 10 to 20 years for building
and land improvements, and 25 to 50 years for buildings.

Reserves and Designations

Portions of fund balances are reserved for future use and, therefore, are not available for appropriation or expenditure.
Designations of unreserved fund balances in Governmental Fund types indicate the School Board's plans for the use of
financial resources in a future period.

Interfund Transactions

During the course of normal aperations, the School Board has numerous transactions between funds, including
expenditures and transfers of resources to provide services, construct assets, and service debt. The accompanying fund
financial statements generally reflect such transactions as operating transfers.
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EAST BATON ROUGE PARISH SCHOOIL. BOARD
Baton Rouge, Louisiana

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

K.

Compensated Absences

Teachers and other school employees accrue from 10 to 12 days of sick leave per year depending upon the number of

months worked. Sick leave may be accumulated without limitation. Upon employees’ death or retirement, unused
accurnulated sick leave of up to 25 days is paid to employees or their heirs at the employees’ current rate of pay. The
accrual computation for earned sick leave is calculated on a 25-day maximum per employee. Sick leave is not payable
upon discharge or termination (non-retirement). Upon retirement, accumulated sick leave may be used in the retirement
benefit computation as earned service. Extended sick leave will be paid at 65% of salary with a maximum of 90 days

allowed every six years for teachers and bus drivers. Extended sick leave for all other employees will be paid at 50% of
salary with a maximum of 25 days annually.

All 12-month employees earn from 10 to 20 days of annual vacation leave per year depending on length of service with
the School Board. Such leave is credited on a pro rata basis at the end of each payroll reporting period and accumulates.
A maximum of 400 hours of unused annual leave is carried over to future periods and may be paid to the employee upon
termination of employment.

All amounts reported are salary related, and include no fringe benefits since the amount of said benefits would be
immaiernal.

Sabbatical leave may be granted for medical/professional. Any employee with a teaching certificate is entitled, subject to
approval by the school board, to one (1) semester of sabbatical leave after three (3) years of continuous services, or two
(2) semesters of sabbatical leave after six (6) or more years of continuous service. Sabbatical leave will be paid at 65%
of salary. Sabbatical leave, which involves professional and cultural improvement, provides a continuing benefit to the
employer and should not be accrued. Since sabbatical leave for medical purposes requires a doctor's certificate prior to
being granted, it is similar to an extended sick leave benefit and should not be accrued as sabbatical leave benefits.
Consequently, sabbatical leave benefits are recorded as current expenditures (in the FFS) in the period paid.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformaty with accounting principles generally accepted in the Unites States
of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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EAST BATON ROUGE PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Baton Rouge, Louisiana

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Deposits

At year end, the carrying amount of the School Board's deposits was $40,999,536 and the bank balance was $47,810,541. Of
the bank balance, $505,997 was insured by federal depository insurance, $156,516 was insured or collateralized by securities
held by the School Board or by its agent in the name of the School Board (GASB Category 1), $47,101,733 was collateralized
by securities held by the pledging financial institutions' trust department or agent in the name of the School Board (GASB
Category 2), and $46,2935 was collateralized by securities held by the financial institutions' or by its trust department or agent,
but not in the School Board’s name (GASB Category 3). Securities that may be pledged as collateral consist of obligations of
the U.S. Government and its agencies; obligations of the State of Louisiana and its municipalities and school districts.

Investments

The School Board also invested $29,542,122 in the Louisiana Asset Management Pool (LAMP), a local government investment
pool. In accordance with GASB codification section I50.126, LAMP investments are not categorized among the three risk
categories as provided by GASB codification section 150.125 because the investment is not evidenced by securities that exist in
physical or book entry form. LAMP is admimistered by LAMP, Inc., which is a nonprofit corporation organized under the laws
of the State of Louisiana, which was formed by an initiative of the State Treasurer in 1993. Only local governments having
contracted to participate in LAMP have an investment interest in its pool of assets. The primary objective of LAMP is to
provide a safe environment for the placement of public funds in short-term, high quality investments. LAMP investments are
restricted to securities issued, guaranteed, or backed by the U.S. Treasury, the U.S. government or one of its agencies,
enterprises, or instrumentalities, as well as repurchase agreements collateralized by those securities. The dollar weighted
average portfolio maturity of LAMP assets is restricted to not more than 90 days, and consists of no securities with a maturity m
excess of 397 days. LAMP deposits may be redeemed at par at any time without penalty or loss of interest. Due to the short-
term nature of the LAMP portfolio and the immediate access at par feature, investments in LAMP are considered cash
equivalents by the School Board.

LAMP operates in a manner consistent with the SEC’s Rule 2a7 of the Investment Company Act of 1940. LAMP uses
amortized cost rather than market value to report net assets to compute share prices. Accordingly, the fair value of the position
in LAMP is the same as the value of LAMP.

4, AD VALOREM TAXES

Ad valorem taxes were levied by the School Board on September 6, 2001 for the calendar year 2002, based on the assessed
valuation of property as of January 1 of the calendar year. The taxes become due on December 1 of each year, and become
delinquent on December 31. However, before the taxes can be collected, the assessment list (tax roll) must be submitted to the
Louisiana Tax Commission for approval. From the day the tax roll is filed in the parish Clerk of Court’s Office, it shall actas a
lien on each specific piece of real estate thereon assessed, which shall be subject to a legal mortgage afier the 31* day of
December of the current year for the payment of the tax due on it. The taxes are generally collected in December, January, and
February of the fiscal year. A list of property on which taxes have not been paid is published in the official journal by the East
Baton Rouge Parish Tax Collector Office, which is a division of the East Baton Rouge Parish Sheriff’s Department. Iftaxes are
not paid within the period stipulated in the public notice, the property is sold for taxes due at a tax sale, usually held prior to the
end of the School Board’s fiscal year.
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EAST BATON ROUGE PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

Baton Rouge. Louisiana

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. AD VALOREM TAXES (continued)

The following is a summary of authorized and levied ad valorem taxes:

Parishwide taxes:
Constitutional tax
Special mamtenance tax
Special tax — additional aid to public schools
Special tax — additional teachers
Special tax — employee salanies and benefuts
Special tax — employee salaries and benefits
Special tax — replacing reduced state and local receipts
Special tax — employee salaries and benefits
Special tax — employee salaries and benefits
Special tax - support ADAPP

Under the Louisiana Constitution, ad valorem taxes other than Constitutional and Bond taxes must be renewed by popular vote

every ten (1Q) years.

All property taxes are recorded in the General and Alcohol and Drug Abuse Funds on the basis explained m Note 2C. Revenues
in such funds are recognized in the accounting period in which they become measurable and available. Property taxes are
considered measurable in the calendar year of the tax levy. Estimated uncollectible taxes are those taxes based on past
experience which will not be collected in the subsequent year and are primarily due to subsequent adjustments to the tax roll.
Available means due, or past due, and receivable within the current period and collected within the current period or expected to
be collected soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. The remaining property taxes receivable are
considered available because they are substantially collected within 60 days subsequent to year end.

Historically, virtually all ad valorem taxes receivable were collected since they are secured by property; therefore, there is no

allowance for uncollectible taxes.
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Authorized Levied

Millage Millage
5.25 5.25
1.04 1.04
6.50 6.50
2.78 2.78
1.86 1.86
7.14 7.14
4.98 4.98
5.99 5.99
7.19 7.19
72 72

Expires

Not applicable
2006
2003
2004
2004
2008
2007
2006
2003
2006



EAST BATON ROUGE PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Baton Rouge, l.ouisiana

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets and depreciation activity as of and for the year ended June 30, 2002 are as follows:

Buildings Furniture Construction
and and in
Land Improvements Equipment Process Total
Cost at June 30, 2001 $ 8,892,293 § 114,546,736 § 32,673,817 $ 14345613 § 170,458,459
Additions 8,225 22,250,615 2,505,501 50,959,235 75,723,576
Deletions ( 316.070) (__10.024.965) ( 27.642) ( 14,345.613) (_24.714,290)
Cost at June 30, 2002 8,584,448 126,772,386 35,151,676 50.959.235 _ 221,467,745
Depreciation:
Accumulated depreciation,

June 30, 2001 - 75,882,579 22,898,805 - 08,781,384
Additions . 3,215,669 4,131,381 - 7,347,050
Deductions ( - ) (L 6719.608) { -} - ) (_6.719.608)
Accumulated depreciation,

June 30, 2002 - 72 378,640 27,030,186 - 99.408.826

Capital assets, net of accumulated

depreciation, at June 30,2002 $§ 8,584,448 3§ 54,393,746 $ 8,121,490 $ 50.959.235 $ 122,058,919

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2002 was charged to the following governmental functions:

Instruction;
Regular education programs $ 5,162,353
Special education programs 88,497
Other educational programs 200,163
Support:
Instructional staff services 131,839
Business and central services 59,490
Plant operation and maintenance 114,486
Transportation 1,439,710
Child nutrition _ 150,511

$ 7,347,050
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EAST BATON ROUGE PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Baton Rouge, L.ounisiana

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS

Plan Description - Substantially all School Board employees participate in either the Teachers' Retirement System or the School
Employees' Retirement System (the Systems), which are cost-sharing, multiple-employer public employee retirement systems.
Each system is administered and controlled at the State level by a separate board of trustees with contribution rates and benefit
provisions approved by the Louisiana Legislature. Participation in the Teachers' Retirement Systern 1s divided into two plans -
the Teachers' Regular Plan and the Teachers' Plan A. Five years of service credit is required to become vested for retirement
benefits and five years to become vested for disability and survivor benefits under each plan.

Each of the Systems issues an annual publicly available financial report that mcludes financial statements and required
supplementary information for the system. These reports may be obtained by writing or calling:

Teachers Retirement System - 8401 United Plaza Blvd.

P. O. Box 94123, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70804-9123
(225) 925-6446

School Employees' Retirement System - 8660 United Plaza Blvd.
Baton Rouge, LA 70809
(225) 925-6484

Funding Policy - Contributions to the plans are required and determined by State statute (which may be amended) and are
expressed as a percentage of covered payroll. The contribution rates in effect for the year ended June 30, 2002, for the School
Board and covered employees were as follows:

School Board Emplovees
Teachers' Retirement System:
Regular Plan 13.10% 8.00%
Plan A 13.10% 9.10%
School Employees' Retirement System - 7.50%

As provided by Louisiana Revised Statute 11:103, the School Board's contributions are determined by actuarial valuation and
are subject to change each year based on the results of the valuation for the prior fiscal year.

The coniributions made to the systems for the past three fiscal years, which substantially equaled the required contributions for
each of these years, were as follows:

2002 2001 2000
Teachers' Retirement System:
Regular Plan $ 23,143,115 $ 24,713,719 $ 24,655,346
Plan A 405,265 465,250 609,838

School Employees’ Retirement System . - _
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EAST BATON ROUGE PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Baton Rouge, L.ouisiana

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

In accordance with state statutes, the School Board provides certain postemployment health care and life insurance benefits to
its retired employees. Substantially all of the School Board's employees may become eligible for such benefits upon reaching
retirement age. For the year ended June 30, 2002, the School Board paid approximately 90% of the health insurance premiums
for retired employees. Retirees contribute 10% of the retiree only coverage and one-half of the cost of dependent coverage.
Retirees who are eligible for Parts A and B of Medicare are exempt from the 10% contribution. The cost of retirement health
care is recognized as an expenditure as premiums are paid. For fiscal year 2002, the School Board's cost for providing all heaith
care and life insurance benefits to the 4,241 retired employees and their dependents amounted to $17,724,047.

The School Board has a continuing future obligation for life insurance and health care benefits for retired teachers and
noninstructional employees and their dependents. This future liability is not funded but will be payable by the General Fund out
of future years’ operations. Although actuarial consultants estimated that this future liability is significant, current generally
accepted accounting principles as set forth by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board do not require the recording of
this hability in the basic financial statements.

LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

The following is a summary of the changes in general long-term obligations for the year ended June 30, 2002:

Compensated Notes Capital
Absences Pavable Lease Total
Balance at July 1, 2001 $ 18,550,541 $ 905,000 § - $ 19,455,541
Additions 6,410,613 2,250,000 2,649,849 11,310,462
Deductions ( 6,595,852 045.909) ( 737.616) ( 8.279.377)
Balance at June 30, 2002 $ 18,365,302 $ 2209091 § 1912233 $ 22,486,626

The following is a summary of the current (due in one year or less) and the long-term (due in more than one year) portions of
long-term obligations as of June 30, 2002:

Compensated Notes Capital
Absences Pavable I ease Total
Current $ 2,612,429 $ 163,636 § 617,233 $ 3,393,298
Long-Term 15,752,873 2,045.455 1,295,000 19.093.328
Total $ 18365302 $ 2209001 § 1912233 § _22.486.626

For the purpose of renovations, the School Board issued $2,250,000 of interest free notes payable through the federally funded
Qualified Zone Academy Bond Program. Principal payments in the amount of $40,909 are scheduled quarterly over a 15 year
period ending November 1, 2015.
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EAST BATON ROUGE PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Baton Rouge, Louisiana

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8. LONG-TERM DEBT (continued)

The payments due under the terms of the notes payable as of June 30th are scheduled to occur as follows:

Payment

Amount
2003 $ 163,636
2004 163,636
2005 163,636
2006 163,636
2007 163,636
2008-2012 818,182
2013-2016 572,729
3 2.209,091

For the purpose of purchasing instructional sofiware, the School Board approved a $2,649,849 capital lease agreement bearing

interest at 3.234%. Principal and interest payments in the amount of $679,080 are scheduled annually over a 4 year period
ending June 30, 2005.

Obligations under capital leases at June 30, 2002, were as follows:

Year Ended December 31, Total
2003 $ 679,080
2004 679,080
2005 679.080
Total minimum lease payments 2,037,240
Less: Amount representing interest costs ( 125,007)
Present value of mumimum lease payments $ 1912233

In accordance with LSA-R.S. 39:562(L), the School Board is legally restricted from incurring long-term bonded debt in excess

of 25 percent of the assessed value of taxable property (including homestead exempt and nonexempt property) within the parish.
At June 30, 2002, the statutory limit is $609,364,555.

9. SHORT-TERM DEBT

The School Board 1ssues revenue anticipationt notes in advance of property tax collections, depositing the proceeds in its general
fund. These notes are necessary because the School Board's Ad Valorem tax collections are received primarily in December-
March. The notes were issued in October 2001, at interest rate of 3.26% and were repaid in March 2002,

Short-term debt activity for the year ended June 30, 2002, was as follows (amounts in 000s):

Beginning Ending
Balance Issued Redeemed Balance
Revenue anticipation notes $ 0- § 5,000,000 ($ 5,000,000) 3 -0-
_28 -




FAST RATON ROUGE PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Baton Rouge, Louisiana

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10. DUE TO/FROM OTHER FUNDS

The school board’s consolidated cash account holds the cash of all funds. As a result, negative cash balances occur m certain
funds and are in essence “financed” by other funds. Positive book cash balances are displayed on the governmental funds
balance sheet as “Due from other funds”, while negative cash balances are included in “Due to other Funds” on the

governmental funds balance sheet.

Individual balances due to/from other funds at June 30, 2002, are as follows:

Due From Due To
Other Other
Funds Funds
Governmental Fund Types:
(General Fund $ - $§ 19,489,930
Title I . 1,555,186
Title VI - 1,790,452
Title VII . 166,135
Title H - 122,836
Title V - 13,662
Special Education - 1,619,245
Gear Up Baton Rouge - 255,357
AmenCorps - 49,700
Alcohol and Drug Abuse 562,191 -
Career and Technical Education - 038,905
Early Childhood - 262,004
Continuing Education - 577,510
Title IV - 244,059
Sales Tax Proposition #2 (Discipline) - 19,206
Sales Tax Proposition #3 (Compensation) 5,914,104 -
Sales Tax Proposition #1 (Facility Enhancements) 3,248 532 -
Local Foundations 300,516 -
Leam and Serve 3,149 -
Direct Federal - 353,885
Child Nutrition 2,621,862 -
Summmer School 3990 868 -
WBRH Radio Station Training Program 23,378 -
Serve! Baton Rouge - 30,650
State Grants - 2,802,332
Gateway School to Career Regtonal Parmership - 37,388
Technology Literacy Challenge (Title III) - 584,414
TANF Pre-GED - 23,108
Qualified Zone Academy Bond Program 538,834 -
Fiduciary Fund Types
Consolidated Payroll 8,837,020 -
Propnietary Fund Types
Workmen’s Conmpensation Fund 1,670,090 -
Risk Management 3,060,829 -
Group Health Insurance 3.775,591 -
TOTAL $§ 30955964 3 30,955,964
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EAST BATON ROUGE PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Baton Rouge, L.ouisiana

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11. LITIGATION AND CONTINGENCIES

The School System is a defendant in several workers' compensation, personal injury and certain personnel action lawsuits.
Management and legal counsel for the School System believe that the potential claims against the School System, not covered
by insurance, would not materially affect the System's financial position.

Consent Decree

The School System, a defendant in a long-standing school desegregation case, has entered into a Consent Decree with the
plaintiffs,. Management and legal counsel for the School System believe that the System 15 in compliance with the existing
Consent Decree which encompasses previous court orders. The Consent Decree requires the School Board {o appropriate funds
annually for facility enhancement, instructional equity, and supplementation of the faculty at the racially identifiable black
schools. The School Board expended the following amounts for the purpose of compliance with the Consent Decree:

Time Out Room Moderators $ 534,224
Textbooks 11,352
Materials of Instruction/Staff Development 48,963
Library Books 267,464
Technology 193,440
Instructional Equity Account 852,069
Racially Identifiable-

Black Schools (Y-Factor) 4,306,607
Facility Enhancements 818,101
New Magnet Programs 3,840,355
Middle School Reform 8,307
Special Education Assistance 39,115
Facihity Remediation 1.091.110

$ 12,011,102

The School System may be liable for certain legal fees and costs related to the prosecution of the litigation by attorneys for the
plaintifts in this case.

Federal Grants

In the normal course of operations, the School Board receives grant funds from various Federal and State agencies. The grant

programs are subject to audit by agents of the granting authority, the purpose of which 1s to ensure compliance with conditions
precedent to the granting of funds. Any liability for reimbursement which may arise as the result of these audits is not believed
to be material.
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EAST BATON ROUGE PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Baton Rouge, Louisiana

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LITIGATION AND CONTINGENCIES (continued)

Secession of Districts

Two geographical areas which are currently governed by the School Board have formed their own separate corporate bodies and
will operate as independent school districts potentially as early as fall 2003. These geographical areas encompass nine schools
that currently enroll approximately 5,400 smdents. The anticipated impact to the School Board 1s a net outflow (loss of revenue
exceeding eliminated expenditures) of $10.7 million. Expenditure reductions of approximately $12.8 million are included in
the fiscal year 2002-2003 General Fund budget to prepare for the adverse impact.

COMMITMENTS

At June 30, 2002, the School Board had construction commitments of approximately $27.6 mmllion. The majority of these
commitments will ultimately be paid out of the capital projects fund.

INTERFUND TRANSFERS

Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2002, were as follows:

Transfers In Transfers Out
General Fund $ 1,775,367 $ 3,738,268
Child Nutrition - 77.000
Title I - 997,004
Capital Projects Fund 1,200,000 -
Non-major funds:
Alcohol & Drug Abuse - 8,908
Continuing Education - 27,890
State Grants 2,611,459 30,839
Special Education - 571,007
Title IV - 28,109
Title V - 1,954
Title V1 - 80,007
Title VII - 12,338
Title 11 - 24,470
Local Programs 150,000 .
Gear Up Baton Rouge - 11,226
Direct Federal - 83,126
Early Childhood - 17
Learn and Serve America - 29
Technology Literacy Challenge (Title II) - 44 634
Total § 573686 $ 5736826

Transfers between funds generally consist of two types: 1) Transfers to the general fund from the special revenue funds for
indirect cost reimbursements; 2) Transfers from the general fund to other programs to provide supplemental local funds for
program operations.
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EAST BATON ROUGE PARISH SCHOOIL BOARD
Baton Rouge, Louisiana

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

15.

On August 8, 2002, the School Board borrowed $5,000,000 from the Louisiana Public Facility Authority. Due to the cyclical
nature of ad valorem tax revenues, this amount was borrowed to provide short-term financing of operating requirements. The

loan bears interest at an annual rate of 2.43%. These borrowings are due to be repaid in entirety of principal plus interest in
March 2003.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The School Board is exposed to vanious risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, or destruction of assets; errors or

omissions; workers' compensation and health insurance for its employees. The School Board has established the following
internal service funds to account for and finance these uninsured risks of loss:

a. Workers' Compensation Fund

The Workers' Compensation Fund accounts for the School Board's workers' compensation claims. The workers'

compensation limit for each accident is the statutory amount. The School Board's self-insured retention 1s $300,000 per
accident.

b. Risk Management Fund

The Risk Management Fund accounts for the School Board's property, general liability and automobile liability. The
School Board has self-insured retention of $100,000 per property occurrence and self-insured retention of $500,000 per
general liability and automobile occurrence. The maximum cumulative amount of self-retention which could be paid by
the School Board in any one year is $2,200,000. The School Board has purchased commercial insurance for claims in
excess of those amounts from cormmercial insurance carriers with a $1,000,000 per occurrence limit.

C. Medical Insurance Fund

The Medical Insurance Fund accounts for the School Board's group health insurance program for its active and retired
employees. A maximum lifetime benefit of $2,000,000 per employee is allowed.
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EAST BATON ROUGE PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

Baton Rouge, Louisiana

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

A reconciliation of the unpaid claims liability as of June 30 follows:

Unpatd claims as of July 1, 2001

Current year claims mcurred and
changes in estimates

Claims paid

Unpaid claims as of June 30, 2002

Unpaid claims as of July 1, 2000

Current year claims incurred and
changes in estimates

Claims paid

Unpaid claims as of June 30, 2001

2002
Workers’ Risk Medical
Compensation Management Insurance
Fund Fund Fund Total

$ 1,977,012 § 2375257 § 6,926,933 $ 11,279,202

2,023,335 773,863 36,007,258 58,804,456

(___1.492.320) (___1.018,649) 31.928.512) (.54.439,481)

$ 2508027 § 2130471 § 11005679 $ 15,644,177
2001
Workers’ Raisk Medical
Compensation Management Insurance
Fund Fund Fund Total

$ 2,104,591 $ 1,818,112 § 2474847 § 6,397,550

1,071,466 1,515,502 28,188,713 30,775,681
(__1,199.045) ( 958.357) (__23.736,627) (25.894,029)

P 1977012 § 2375257 $ 6926933 § 11,279,202

The above unpaid claims as of June 30 include amounts for claims incurred but not yet reported, as determined from actual
claims paid subsequent to year-end as well as an estimate based upon historical lag trends.

16. DEFICIT FUND EQUITY

The Medical Insurance Fund’s deficit balance as of June 30, 2002 in net assets is $7,052,367. Plans to bring the fund out of a
deficit position inchuding cost-cutting through benefits restructuring, as well as increasing premiums have been implemented.
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EAST BATON ROUGE PARISH SCHOOI. BOARD
Baton Rouge, Louisiana

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS — INDIVIDUAL FUNDS

As reported in the budgetary companson schedules that are presented as required supplemental information for the year ended
June 30, 2002, the actual expenditures 1n the following funds exceeded budgeted appropnations:

Proposition 3 — Compensation Fund § 117,155

Despite the fact that expenditures exceeded appropniations, the Proposition 3 — Compensation Fund maintained a $16,749,863
fund balance as of June 30, 2002, which is considered adequate to absorb the over appropriations.
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EAST BATON ROUGE PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Baton Rouge, Louisiana

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES

Budgetary comparison schedules are reported for the following general and special revenue funds:

GENERAL FUND

The General Fund accounts for all financial transactions except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

TITLE I FUND

Title I includes programs in the areas of language development, reading, and math. These programs strive to meet the special needs
of economically and educationally deprived children through federal funds for teachers, aides, instructional materials, equipment and
parental involvement.

PROPOSITION 2 - DISCIPLINE FUND

Proposition 2 is a locally funded mitiative to improve discipline. The intent 1s to remove disruptive and academically deficient
students from the regular education classroom, reduce truancy and provide more effective alternative education.

PROPOSITION 3 - COMPENSATION FUND

Proposition 3 is a locally funded initiative to improve compensation. The intent is to improve ability to recruit and retain certified
and qualified teachers, assistant principals and principals; to have more productive support employees; and to have the ability to
reward performance that meets and/or exceeds standards.

CHILD NUTRITION FUND

The Child Nutrition Fund is used to account for the operations of the school food service program in the parish school system during
the regular school term and during the summer break. The basic goals of the school food service program is to serve nutritionally
adequate, attractive and moderately priced meals, to help children grow socially and emotionally, to extend educational influences to

the homes of school children, and to provide leammg experiences that will improve children's food habits with the ultimate goal of
physically fit adults.
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EAST BATON ROUGE PARISH SCHOOL. BOARD

Baton Rouge, Louisiana
GENERAL FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Vanance with

Final Budget
Posiave
Original Final _ Actual (Negative)
REVENUES "‘ -
Local sonrces:
Ad valorem taxes £ 78,338,710 $ 78,705,775 $ 80,229,776 g 1,524,001
Sales and tse taxes 66,345,600 65,426,000 66,670,948 1,244 948
Eamings on investments 1.275,000 1,200,000 043,905 (256,095)
Extended Day Program tuition 475,000 475,000 386,122 (88,878)
Other 1,710,000 2,690,000 2,886,503 156,503
State sources.
Unrestricted grants-in-aid, MFP 126,373,000 138,525,159 138,731,256 206,097
Revenue sharing 3,885,000 3,909,700 3,934,795 25,005
Restricted grants-in-aid 3,448,424 3,257,720 3,252,118 (5,602)
Federal grants 485,000 450,000 520,013 30,013
TOTAL REVENUES T 282,335,134 294,679,354 297,555,836 2,876,482
EXPENDITURES
Current;
Instruction:
Regular education programs 96,279,000 104,671,750 104,497,036 174,714
Special education programs 42 424,900 43,746,511 44,689,680 (943,169)
Other education programs 12,426,795 12,711,460 12,560,720 130,740
Support:
Pupil support services 14,892,408 15,397,755 15,325,683 72,072
Instructional stafT services 7,562,443 7,834,137 7,773,200 60,937
General administration services 7.110,242 7,464,229 7,968,709 (504,480)
School admmmstrat<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>